
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING 
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 

PLAN COMMISSION 

 November 2, 2017 – 7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Village Hall – 16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 
 

Regular Meeting Called to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call Taken 
Communications 
Approval of Minutes: Minutes of the October 19, 2017 Regular Meeting 
 
Item #1 STUDIO Q – 17708 OAK PARK AVENUE 

PUBLIC HEARING: SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
CONSIDERATION FOR RECOMMENDATION: SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
Consider recommending that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Qiana Grant of Studio 
Q, a Special Use Permit to allow a recreational business use (including group fitness 
classes) at 17708 Oak Park Avenue in the NG (Neighborhood General) Zoning District. 

 
Item #2 THE RESIDENCE OF BROOKSIDE GLEN – SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 191ST 

STREET AND MAGNUSON LANE 
PUBLIC HEARING: SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL: SITE PLAN 
CONSIDERATION FOR RECOMMENDATION: SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
Consider granting Site Plan Approval and consider recommending that the Village Board 
grant the Petitioner, Andrea Crowley of Griffin & Gallagher, LLC on behalf of Karli 
Mayher and KJM-Vandenberg Brookside Joint Venture, a Special Use Permit for a 
Substantial Deviation from the Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development and any related 
Exceptions to develop a one hundred forty-four (144) unit multi-family residential project 
(a.k.a. The Residence of Brookside Glen) at the properties generally located west of 
Magnuson Lane and John Michael Drive in the southwest corner of 191st Street and 
Magnuson Lane. 

 
Good of the Order 
Receive Comments from the Public 
Adjourn Meeting 
  



Page 2 of 2 

ORDER OF PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Opening of Public Hearing (voice vote) 

B. Swearing in Petitioner, Objectors, and Interested Persons  

C. Confirmation of notices being published and mailed in accordance with State law and Village policy 

D. Village Staff Presentation  

E. Petitioner Presentation 

i. Cross Examination 

ii. Questions by Public Body 

F. Objectors Presentation(s)  

i. Cross Examination  

ii. Questions by Public Body 

G. Petitioner Rebuttal (if any) 

H. Final questions by Public Body 

I. Closing remarks by Petitioner, Objectors, Interested Persons, and Village Staff 

J. Close or continuation of Public Hearing 

K. Staff presents Findings of Fact 

L. Vote by Roll Call 

 

PUBLIC HEARING REMINDERS 

• All public hearings of a Public Body are meetings as defined by the Illinois Open Meetings Act (5 ILCS 
120/1 et seq.). 

• Prior to the commencement of the public hearing, the Chair will determine whether there are any 
Objectors or other Interested Persons and if an attorney represents any Objector, group of Objectors or 
Interested Persons. 

• All individuals desiring to participate in the public hearing process must participate in a swearing of an 
oath.  

• The Chair may impose reasonable limitations on evidence or testimony presented by persons and parties, 
such as barring repetitious, irrelevant or immaterial testimony. 

• The Chair may take such actions as are required to maintain an orderly and civil hearing. 

 



Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission 
October 19,  2017   

Page 1 of 18 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
PLAN COMMISSION, VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, 
COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS 

OCTOBER 19, 2017 

The Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission was held in the Council Chambers of Village Hall on 
October 19, 2017 at 7:00p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL 

Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 
Lucas Engel 
Eduardo Mani 
Angela Gatto 
Tim Stanton 
Peter Kroner 
John Curran 

Absent Plan Commissioner(s):  Garrett Gray 
Chuck Augustyniak 

Village Officials and Staff: Paula Wallrich, Interim Community Development Director 
Stephanie Malmborg, Planner I 
Patrick Connelly, Village Attorney (arrived at 7:26) 
Michael Glotz, Trustee 
Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  

CALL TO ORDER 

PLAN COMMISSION CHAIRMAN SHAW called to order the Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission 
for October 19, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

COMMUNICATIONS 

COMMISSIONER KRONER recognized Ben Anderson, the camera operator at the meeting for being 
“Student of the Week” at his high school.   

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Minutes of the October 5, 2017 Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission were presented for approval.  A 
Motion was made by COMMISSIONER STANTON, seconded by COMMISSIONER CURRAN, to 
approve the Minutes. The Motion was approved by voice call.  CHAIRMAN SHAW  declared the 
Motion approved.   



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 2 of 18 

CHAIRMAN SHAW stated due to the large agenda this evening.  He requested the audience and 
Commission to respect meeting protocols by making sure they are recognized by the chair prior to 
speaking. He requested that comments should be on point and concise.  He would ask that everyone this 
evening maintain order and show respect for folks when they are speaking. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 3 of 18 

TO:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FROM:  VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION 
 
SUBJECT:  MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 19, 2017 REGULAR MEETING 

 
ITEM #1          PUBLIC HEARING: BANGING GAVEL – 6811 HICKORY STREET 

CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL: SITE PLAN 
CONSIDERATION FOR RECOMMENDATION: PLAT OF  SUBDIVISION AND                                                          
VARIANCES 

 
Consider granting the Petitioner, James Richert of Banging Gavel, Site Plan Approval for 
an outdoor seating area and related landscape improvements and recommending that the 
Village Board grant approval for the following: 

 
1. The Final Plat of Subdivision;  

 
2. A three foot, four inch (3’4”) variance from Section XII.4.E. (Table 

4.E.1.) of the Zoning Ordinance where the maximum height for a 
freestanding frame sign is four feet (4’). This variance would allow a 
seven foot, four inch (7’4”) tall freestanding frame sign. 
 

3. A nine foot (9’) variance from Section XII.4.E. (Table 4.E.1.) of the 
Zoning Ordinance where a freestanding frame must be set back ten feet 
(10’) from the property line. This variance would allow the freestanding 
frame sign to be set back one foot (1’) from the north property line.  
 

4. A thirteen foot (13’) variance from Section XII.2.A.9. (Table 2.A.6.) of 
the Zoning Ordinance where an accessory structure is required to be set 
back twenty feet (20’) from a primary street. This variance would allow a 
pergola at a seven foot (7’) setback from the east property line. 

 
Present were the following: 
 

Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 
Lucas Engel 
Eduardo Mani 
Angela Gatto 
Tim Stanton 
Peter Kroner 
John Curran 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):  Garrett Gray 

     Chuck Augustyniak 
    
 Village Officials and Staff: Paula Wallrich, Interim Community Development Director 
     Stephanie Malmborg, Planner I 

Patrick Connelly, Village Attorney (arrived at 7:26 p.m.) 
     Michael Glotz, Trustee 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 4 of 18 

     Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
 
 Guests:    James Richert, Petitioner 
     Joe Bandza, Trinity Construction 
 
A Motion was made by  COMMISSIONER KRONER, seconded by COMMISSIONER MANI, to open 
the Public Hearing for Banging Gavel on consideration for approval of requested variations. The Motion 
was approved unanimously by voice call.  CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion approved. 
 
The Commission will also consider the proposed Site Plan for approval and the Plat of Subdivision for 
recommendation to the Village Board.    
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted that Village Staff provided confirmation that appropriate notice regarding the 
Public Hearing was published in the local newspaper in accordance with State law and Village 
requirements.   
  
CHAIRMAN SHAW requested anyone present in the audience, who wished to give testimony, comment, 
engage in cross-examination or ask questions during the Hearing stand and be sworn in. 
 
STEPHANIE MALMBORG, Planner I, stated the open items from the workshop were: 
 

1. A variance is required for the proposed pergola. 
• The Plan Commission discussed concerns about sight lines around the pergola. Staff 

identified measurements between the pergola and Oak Park Avenue in a graphic 
found on page 5 of the Staff Report. 

• The Plan Commission requested a rendering of what the pergola will look like from 
Oak Park Avenue. The requested rendering was presented to the Commissioners. 

2. Variances are required for the proposed freestanding frame sign. 
• The Plan Commission discussed the variance request and had no follow up questions 

about the sign. 
3. Approval of the Landscape Plan. 

 The Village’s Landscape Architect completed review of the Landscape Plan and has 
one outstanding comment regarding landscaping in the public frontage along Oak 
Park Avenue.  

 
MS. MALMBORG presented photos of the existing site. She explained the zoning and the history of the 
building.  The proposed beer garden area includes approximately 150 seats and is surrounded by a 4 foot 
tall ornamental fence.  MS. MALMBORG displayed a rendering of the pergola, which will promote the 
Village’s music brand and provide entertainment for patrons at the beer garden.  It will provide an outdoor 
stage area for musicians and entertainers.  The pergola is approximately 7 feet from the east property line 
and there is approximately 12 feet from the east property line to the curb on Oak Park Avenue.  There is  
40 feet from the south corner of the pergola to the curb, thus mitigating any line-of-sight issues. 
 
MS. MALMBORG noted the Petitioner has submitted a revised Landscape Plan, which will require 
another Staff review to ensure that all outstanding comments are addressed.   
 
MS. MALMBORG explained the sign plan, noting that it does not meet all aspects of the sign regulations 
within the Legacy Code, including the maximum height and required setback. The Petitioner states that 
they will not be using a wall sign due to the historic nature of the building and the regulations per the 
National Register.   
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for comments from the Commissioners.   



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 5 of 18 

COMMISSIONER MANI asked if the seating area was elevated and also asked if the seating was ADA 
accessible.  JAMES RICHERT, Petitioner, replied that it was not elevated and he will adjust according to 
ADA requirements.    
 
COMMISSIONER KRONER noted it was a pleasure working with these Petitioners. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked if anyone from the public would like to speak during the Public Hearing. 
There were none.   
 
Motion was made by COMMISSIONER KRONER, seconded by COMMISSIONER STANTON, to close 
the Public Hearing.  Vote by voice.  CHARIMAN SHAW declared the Motion carried.   
 
Motion was made by COMMISSIONER KRONER, seconded by COMMISSIONER CURRAN, to grant 
the Petitioner, James Richert of Banging Gavel, Site Plan Approval for an outdoor seating area and related 
landscape improvements and recommend that the Village Board grant approval for the Final Plat of 
Subdivision and the following variances for the property at 6811 Hickory Street in the DC (Downtown 
Core) Zoning District: 

1. A three foot (3’) variance from Section XII.4.E. (Table 4.E.1.) of the Zoning Ordinance 
where the maximum height for a freestanding frame sign is four feet (4’). This variance will 
allow for a seven foot (7’) tall freestanding frame sign. 
 

2. A nine foot (9’) variance from Section XII.4.E. (Table 4.E.1.) of the Zoning Ordinance where 
a freestanding frame must be set back ten feet (10’) from the property line. This variance will 
allow for the freestanding frame sign to be set back one foot (1’) from the north property line.  
 

3. A thirteen foot (13’) variance from Section XII.2.A.9. (Table 2.A.6.) of the Zoning Ordinance 
where an accessory structure is required to be set back twenty feet (20’) from a primary 
street. This variance will allow a pergola at a seven foot (7’) setback from the east property 
line. 

 
…with the following conditions: 
 

1. That the Landscape Plan be revised to indicate additional plant material (per the 
recommendation of the Village’s Landscape Architect) in the public frontage 
between the east property line and the sidewalk. 

 
 

AYES:   PLAN COMMISSIONERS KRONER, STANTON, CURRAN, ENGEL, MANI, 
GATTO, and CHAIRMAN SHAW 

 
NAYS:   NONE 

 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion approved. 
 
 
 
 
  



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 6 of 18 

TO:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FROM:  VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION 
 
SUBJECT:  MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 19, 2017 REGULAR MEETING 

 
ITEM #2          PUBLIC HEARING: ALDI – 16000 HARLEM AVENUE 

CONSIDERATION FOR RECOMMENDATION: SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
Consider recommending that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Doyle Signs, Inc. on 
behalf of Aldi, a Special Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the Park Center 
Plaza Planned Unit Development to allow for an increase in the size and number of signs 
allowed for Aldi at 16000 Harlem Avenue and within the B-3 PD (General Business and 
Commercial, Park Center Plaza Planned Unit Development) Zoning District. The 
proposed Substantial Deviation would allow a total of four (4) wall signs, a total sign face 
area of 211 square feet, and the main sign would be a maximum height of fifteen feet 
(15’). 

 
Present were the following: 
 

Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 
Lucas Engel 
Eduardo Mani 
Angela Gatto 
Tim Stanton 
Peter Kroner 
John Curran 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):  Garrett Gray 

     Chuck Augustyniak 
    
 Village Officials and Staff: Paula Wallrich, Interim Community Development Director 
     Stephanie Malmborg, Planner I 

Patrick Connelly, Village Attorney 
     Michael Glotz, Trustee 
     Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
  

Guests:    Scott Kator, Aldi 
    John Streetz, Doyle Sign 
    Tom Bertram, Aldi 

 
A Motion was made by  COMMISSIONER MANI, seconded by COMMISSIONER GATTO, to open the 
Public Hearing on a Special Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the Park Center Plaza Planned 
Unit Development to allow for an increase in the size and number of signs allowed for Aldi at 16000 
Harlem Avenue and within the B-3 PD (General Business and Commercial, Park Center Plaza Planned 
Unit Development) Zoning District. The Motion was approved unanimously by voice call.  CHAIRMAN 
SHAW declared the Motion approved. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted that Village Staff provided confirmation that appropriate notice regarding the 
Public Hearing was published in the local newspaper in accordance with State law and Village 
requirements.   
  



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 7 of 18 

CHAIRMAN SHAW requested anyone present in the audience, who wished to give testimony, comment, 
engage in cross-examination or ask questions during the Hearing stand and be sworn in. 
 
STEPHANIE MALBORG, Planner I, stated the Petitioner is looking for a larger sign as well as more wall 
signs than the Village’s Sign Regulations allow.  Staff notes that this request is a Substantial Deviation 
from the PUD rather than a variance.  At the workshop, the Plan Commission requested a visual 
comparison of the proposed sign compared to an Aldi sign that meets the Village’s regulations.  MS. 
MALMBORG presented the requested renderings as follows: 

1. Proposed wall sign: 15 feet tall, 189.375 SF 
2. Wall sign that meets code: 7 feet tall, 41.27 SF 
3. Wall sign near the maximum square footage: 12 feet tall, 120.69 SF 

 
MS. MALMBORG also displayed a photo that the Petitioner supplied that displays a 5’x 7’ plywood 
board on the Aldi façade to represent the size of a sign that would meet Village code.   
 
MS. MALMBORG noted the Petitioner is also seeking three (3) additional signs (small symbols of the 
products they sell) to be mounted on the lower portion of the façade to the right of the main wall sign. 
 
MS. MALMBORG explained the zoning and nearby land uses.  She noted that the previous tenant, 
Eurofresh, had a large primary wall sign over the main entrance along with four secondary signs to the 
left of the storefront.  Cub Foods, another previous tenant) also had a sign that exceeded the Village code.  
Staff could not locate a variance or special approval allowing these signs.    
 
COMMISSIONER KRONER asked for the total frontage of the Aldi store.  The Petitioner replied it is 
114’.  MS. MALMBORG noted they would therefore be allowed 114 SF of sign face area (or one square 
foot for every foot of tenant frontage).   
 
MS. MALMBORG noted the existing Aldi site has a clear view from Harlem Avenue despite the distance 
of around 575’ to Harlem Avenue; however, the new Aldi site will have the Chipotle/Mattress Firm outlot 
building partially blocking the view from Harlem Avenue to the storefront.  The Plan Commission also 
requested information about the Sam’s Club sign.  A photo was presented.  The Sam’s club sign is 10’ x 
10’ and is a total of 100 square feet of sign face area.  The sign height is 14’-1 ¾” tall since it was rotated 
45 degrees.  The length of their store front is 357’.  Staff notes that this sign is also nonconforming to the 
maximum allowable height since it is taller than 7’ but noted the sign face area meets code.  There was 
discussion regarding the Tinley Park Plaza PUD on the east side of Harlem Avenue, which allows larger 
signs as part of their PUD.  Tenants within this shopping center are allowed 1.5 SF of signage for every 1 
foot of store frontage with no maximum size limitation; however, the maximum height for a wall sign is 
also 7’ tall.   
 
COMMISSIONER KRONER asked how far back the Tinley Park Plaza building is located.  MS 
MALMBORG replied Planet Fitness is about 320’ east of Harlem Avenue and meets current regulations.  
Planet Fitness is about 220’ closer to Harlem than the proposed Aldi sign.   
 
COMMISSIONER KRONER stated Sam’s sign is 100 SF with 357’ frontage and Aldi is asking for 190 
SF with 114’ storefront.  He stated that the Village needs to be fair to everyone on that side of the road. 
He stated he understood the need for a bigger sign but felt the sign they are proposing is way too big.  He 
stated that a sign similar in size to Sam’s Club’s sign would be fair.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for opinions of the other Commissioners.   
 
COMMISSIONERS STANTON and GATTO agreed with COMMISSIONER KRONER’s comments.   



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 8 of 18 

 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked the Petitioner, JOHN STREETZ of Doyle Signs, to make a presentation.   
 
MR. STREETZ stated this is a large capital investment.  Aldi is in the process of remodeling and 
improving the former Eurofresh and Cub Foods space. Part of this improvement is to provide reasonable 
and effective identification on the storefront.    This building is located approximately 540’ from Harlem 
Avenue frontage.  The previous business had 555’ of signage above the entrance and 187’ additional SF 
of secondary signage.  There is no record of anyone in Tinley Park complaining about that large sign.  
The current code restricts wall sign area by zoning district, gross tenant space, and frontage.  This 
restriction provides no relief for business that are set back long distances from the property line.  This 
permits a business that is near the property line to have the same size sign as one set back over 500’. This 
restriction is unreasonable and inappropriate.  This sign is reasonable in relationship to the size and set 
back of the storefront.  We do not agree that the sign appears too big.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW appreciates the comparisons of the three signs and asked for comments from the 
Commissioners. He questioned whether the middle sized sign would still requires a height deviation.  MS. 
MALMBORG replied there would still be a deviation because it is over the 7’ maximum height.   
 
COMMISSIONER KRONER noted Sam’s Club is further back and has more tenant frontage. He is open 
to considering a larger sign for Aldi, but not as large was what was requested by the Petitioner.   
 
COMMISSIONER ENGEL stated we should be pro-business. He noted they have already purchased the 
sign proposed sign.   
 
COMMISSIONER KRONER stated we have to be fair to all the businesses in town and that he felt it 
unfair to give special dispensation to one just because they bought it ahead of approval.  He stated that 
was their error and Staff had warned them that they needed a sign permit. He noted Staff had informed 
them they needed approval prior to erecting the sign and they chose not to obtain the permit before 
purchasing the sign. He stated that Aldi is a major corporation and they should know what they are doing.  
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW stated he felt it was a good faith error. 
 
COMMISSIONER CURRAN stated there were two businesses there with larger signs.  The larger sign 
fits more appropriately.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW stated, per the Staff Report, the previous signs did not receive variances and are 
clearly nonconforming. MS. MALMBORG replied there are permit records, but there is no record of a 
variance approval.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked if anyone from the public would like to speak during the Public Hearing.  
 
TOM BERTRAM, Aldi, stated he also lives in Tinley Park.  He feels that the investment Aldi is making 
in the community is outstanding and more than just taking over the building.  Aldi is completely gutting 
the building and updated everything per code.  It is like a brand new store for Aldi.  This will be the most 
modern grocery store in Tinley Park.  We appreciate your consideration.   
 
Motion was made by COMMISSIONER KRONER, seconded by COMMISSIONER STANTON, to close 
the Public Hearing.  Vote by voice.  CHARIMAN SHAW declared the Motion carried.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for the Finding of Facts.  MS. MALMBORG read them as follows: 
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 9 of 18 

• The proposed signage will meet applicable Village Building Codes and Electrical 
Codes. 

• The proposed signage is visually in scale with the new façade. 
• The proposed signage will create a more readable sign from Harlem Avenue and 

assist customers in locating the shopping center without impeding traffic flow. 
• The proposed signage is will not negatively affect other adjacent properties within the 

Park Center Plaza shopping center because it will attract customers to the shopping 
center.  

• The proposed signage will not negatively affect improvements within the Park Center 
Plaza shopping center or surrounding properties.  

• This request will not set a precedent for signage in other areas of Tinley Park since 
Aldi is part of the Park Center Plaza Planned Unit Development (PUD) and PUDs 
have flexibility with zoning regulations to fit the unique needs of the development.  

• This is not a variance request – it is a deviation from the original PUD to allow for 
changes to the allowable signage for this tenant space. 

• The site, Park Center Plaza, has existing utilities, roads, drainage, and necessary 
facilities. 

• The proposed signage will provide increased visibility toward Harlem Avenue, which 
is a distance of approximately 540’ from the façade. A sign meeting Village 
regulations would not be readable at this distance when driving the speed limit on 
Harlem Avenue. 

• The proposed signage will conform to all other applicable regulations. 
• The proposed signage contributes to the economic development of the community by 

allowing a new business to competitively advertise to customers on major 
thoroughfares. 

• Aldi will attract customers to the Park Center Plaza shopping center and to the Tinley 
Park Area. 

 
COMMISSIONER KRONER questioned whether there was consensus on the deviation for the number of 
signs to allow for the three (3) secondary signs. The COMMISSIONERS indicated no issue with the 
secondary signs. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW stated he would like separate motions for the deviation on number of signs and size.   
 
Motion was made by COMMISSIONER KRONER, seconded by COMMISSIONER GATTO, to 
recommend that the Village Board grant a Special Use Permit to the Petitioner, Doyle Signs, Inc. on 
behalf of Aldi, for a Substantial Deviation from the Park Center Plaza Planned Unit Development to 
allow for an increase in the number of signs allowed for Aldi at 16000 Harlem Avenue and within the B-3 
PD (General Business and Commercial, Park Center Plaza Planned Unit Development) Zoning District. 
The proposed Substantial Deviation will allow a total of four (4) wall signs.  
 

AYES:   PLAN COMMISSIONERS KRONER, STANTON, CURRAN, ENGEL, MANI, 
GATTO, and CHAIRMAN SHAW 

 
NAYS:   NONE 

 
CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion approved. 
 
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 10 of 18 

Motion was made by COMMISSIONER ENGEL, seconded by COMMISSIONER CURRAN, to 
recommend that the Village Board grant a Special Use Permit to the Petitioner, Doyle Signs, Inc. on 
behalf of Aldi, for a Substantial Deviation from the Park Center Plaza Planned Unit Development to 
allow for an increase in the size of signs allowed for Aldi at 16000 Harlem Avenue and within the B-3 PD 
(General Business and Commercial, Park Center Plaza Planned Unit Development) Zoning District. The 
proposed Substantial Deviation will allow a total sign face area of 253 square feet, and the main sign 
would be a maximum height of fifteen feet (15’). 
 

AYES:   PLAN COMMISSIONERS CURRAN and ENGEL 
 
NAYS:   PLAN COMMISSIONERS KRONER, STANTON, MANI, GATTO, and 

CHAIRMAN SHAW 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion failed. 
 
Motion was made by COMMISSIONER KRONER, seconded by COMMISSIONER STANTON, to 
recommend that the Village Board grant a Special Use Permit to the Petitioner, Doyle Signs, Inc. on 
behalf of Aldi, for a Substantial Deviation from the Park Center Plaza Planned Unit Development to 
allow for an increase in the size of signs allowed for Aldi at 16000 Harlem Avenue and within the B-3 PD 
(General Business and Commercial, Park Center Plaza Planned Unit Development) Zoning District. The 
proposed Substantial Deviation will allow a total sign face area of 184 square feet, with a maximum 
height of twelve feet (12’) as reflected in Option 3 withn the Staff Report. 
 

AYES:   PLAN COMMISSIONERS GATTO, MANI, ENGEL, STANTON, KRONER, and 
CHAIRMAN SHAW. 

 
NAYS:   PLAN COMMISSIONER CURRAN 

 
CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 11 of 18 

TO:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FROM:  VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION 
 
SUBJECT:  MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 19, 2017 REGULAR MEETING 
 
ITEM #3           STUDIO Q – 17708 OAK PARK AVENUE WORKSHOP: SPECIAL USE PERMIT  

Consider recommending that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Qiana Grant of Studio 
Q, a Special Use Permit to allow a recreational business use (including group fitness 
classes) at 17708 Oak Park Avenue in the NG (Neighborhood General) Zoning District. 

 
Present were the following: 
 

Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 
Lucas Engel 
Eduardo Mani 
Angela Gatto 
Tim Stanton 
Peter Kroner 
John Curran 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):  Garrett Gray 

     Chuck Augustyniak 
    
 Village Officials and Staff: Paula Wallrich, Interim Community Development Director 
     Stephanie Malmborg, Planner I 
     Patrick Connelly, Village Attorney 

Michael Glotz, Trustee 
     Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
  

Guests:    Qiana Grant, Studio Q 
 
STEPHANIE MALMBORG, Planner I, stated the Petitioner Qiana Grant of Studio Q, is requesting a 
Special Use Permit to allow a recreational business use at 17708 Oak Park Avenue in the Neighborhood 
General Zoning District.  In the Staff Report the open items are noted as: 
 

1. Consider conditions related to sound.  Music is generally played and it is important to be good 
neighbors to the adjacent tenants. 

2. The Petitioner is required to install a bike rack to provide parking for at least two (2) bikes. Per 
the Legacy Code bike racks are required to be more pedestrian and bike friendly. 

 
MS. MALMBORG displayed a photo of the existing site.  She noted the total number of employees 
would be four (4) and the business would provide group dance and fitness classes such as Zumba, hip 
hop, yoga, and cycling. The proposed hours of operation are:  

o Monday – Thursday: 9:00am to 11:00am, 6:00pm to 8:00pm 
o Friday: 6:00pm to 8:00pm 
o Saturday: 9:00am to 11:00am 
o Sunday: Closed 

MS. MALMBORG noted the total maximum number of participants in fitness classes at one time is 30. 
The number of parking spaces allotted to the business is 45. Staff did not feel parking was an issue as 
there is over 170 parking spaces  in the commercial center.   



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 12 of 18 

MS. MALMBORG stated the zoning is Neighborhood General and the property is within the Legacy 
District.  Nearby land uses include single-family residential and commercial properties.  Some tenants in 
Tinley Center include Cuzin’s, Gateway Learning Center, Farmers Insurance, and Tinley Park Tax Center. 
 
COMMISSIONER STANTON asked about the sound from the bar which would be noisy at night for the 
tutoring next door.   
 
COMMISSIONER CURRAN asked if the bar had sound requirements.  MS. MALMBORG replied just 
the regulations for sound per the Village’s municipal code related to nuisances.   
 
QIANA GRANT, Studio Q, stated she went next door to the tutoring business to discuss noise. Studio Q 
will not be open at all during the times when the tutoring business is open, so sound should not be an 
issue.  She stated she is providing a place where people have a passion for dance and fitness.  She has 
been a dance instructor since 2006. The instructors that will be working there also have a lot of 
experience. 
 
CHARIMAN SHAW asked if there were currently any security cameras at the location.  MS. GRANT 
replied that she is currently working with ADT for the interior security.   
 
MS. MALMBORG asked if it was necessary to draft conditions regarding the sound.  CHAIRMAN 
SHAW replied the same sound conditions as required for Mile 1 Fitness would be appropriate.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked if there were any other questions. There were none. He stated the Public 
Hearing will be on November 2, 2017. 
 
 
  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 13 of 18 

TO:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FROM:  VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION 
 
SUBJECT:  MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 19, 2017 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Item #4            THE RESIDENCE OF BROOKSIDE GLEN – SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 191ST 

STREET AND MAGNUSON LANE  
WORKSHOP: SITE PLAN APPROVAL AND SPECIAL USE PERMIT 
Consider granting Site Plan Approval and consider recommending that the Village Board                        
grant the Petitioner, Andrea Crowley of Griffin & Gallagher, LLC on behalf of Karli 
Mayher and KJM-Vandenberg Brookside Joint Venture, a Special Use Permit for a 
Substantial Deviation from the Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development and any related 
Exceptions to develop a one hundred forty-four (144) unit multi-family residential project 
(a.k.a. The Residence of Brookside Glen) at the properties generally located west of 
Magnuson Lane and John Michael Drive in the southwest corner of 191st Street and 
Magnuson Lane. 

 
Present were the following: 
 

Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 
Lucas Engel 
Eduardo Mani 
Angela Gatto 
Tim Stanton 
Peter Kroner 
John Curran 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):  Garrett Gray 

     Chuck Augustyniak 
    
 Village Officials and Staff: Paula Wallrich, Interim Community Development Director 
     Stephanie Malmborg, Planner I 
     Patrick Connelly, Village Attorney 
     Michael Glotz, Trustee 
     Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
  

Guests:    Karli Mayher, Developer 
    Scott Shalvis, Architect 
    Andrea Crowley, Attorney 
    Steve Gregory, Eriksson Engineering Assoc.    

 
CHAIRMAN SHAW requested the audience and the Commission to recognize meeting protocols and 
make sure they are recognized by the chair prior to speaking. Comments should be on point and concise.  
He would ask that everyone this evening maintain order and show respect for folks when they are 
speaking. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted that COMMISSIONER STANTON has previously and continues to recuse 
himself from discussion on this project.   
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 14 of 18 

STEPHANIE MALMBORG, Planner I, stated the request is for Site Plan Approval and a Special Use 
Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development with two (2) 
Exceptions from the Zoning Ordinance for front yard setback and building height.   
 
The open items are as follows: 

1. Consider an Exception for the front yard setback to allow the structures to be set back about 18’ 
to 27’ from the east property line. 

2. Consider an Exception for the building height to allow the structures at a maximum building 
height of 65’. 

3. Minor revisions are required on the Landscape Plan. 
4. Information is needed about the plans for security and management of the property. 
5. Lighting is required near all entrances/exits to the structures. The Petitioner must submit plans 

showing adequate lighting provided by fixtures complimentary to the architectural style of the 
structures. 

6. Revise elevations to include reddish brown brick accents on the club house. 
7. Provide material sample for the foundation of the building.  Material samples have been provided 

and they are on the table to view.   
 
MS. MALMBORG presented a rendering of the proposed development.  She noted there are four (4) 
four-story multi-family residential buildings with a club house located in the center.  She noted the road 
fronting the project curves and the buildings are aligned along the curve.  Previously, the Plan 
Commission reviewed a proposal from the Petitioner for two (2) residential buildings and a club house 
with each building having 72 units.  This previous proposal did not receive approval from the Plan 
Commission or the Village Board.  The current proposal provides four (4) residential buildings with 36 
units per building.  The Petitioner has retained all of the luxury amenities offered with the previous plan.  
The Petitioner has met with Staff, elected officials, and a group of residents from the Brookside Glen 
development to work through issues related to the first proposal. The four (4) building proposal was 
found to be the preferred option since they can maintain the amenities for the development.  The other 
option would be going back to the approved plan in 2000 which was a nine (9) building proposal without 
any luxury amenities.  She noted that only the center part of the residential buildings are a full four (4) 
stories. This creates an architectural design that breaks up the bulk of the building.   
 
MS. MALMBORG noted the zoning in the area is B-3 at the intersection and the other zoning is R-5 and 
R-2.  It is noted that the zoning has been a topic of discussion in prior meetings. The Village originally 
annexed the property in 1990 and one of the exhibits from the 1990 documents which illustrates the 
various boundaries for the zoning districts is missing.  However, the documents that were approved on the 
same night clearly identify the subject parcel and the area where the existing Brookside Place 
development is located as R-6. The Village’s Official Zoning Map identifies these parcels as R-5, which is 
considered a mapping error.  
 
MS. MALMBORG discussed the open items as follows: 
 

Open Item #1 – Setback Requirements. There are two different regulations which are the 
minimum setback requirement for R-6 multi-family and an overlay district or the Urban Design 
for properties south of 179th Street.  The requested exceptions for R-6 front yard setback would be 
25’ minimum and the UD-1 front yard setback would be 20’ maximum.  It is not possible to meet 
both requirements.  The proposed setback is 18’ to 27’, which meets the intent of both 
regulations.   
 
Open Item #2 – Building Height. The number of stories is the same as Brookside Place.  The 
proposed difference of mean roof height is a 9’- 6.5”.   The Zoning Ordinance regulation for 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 15 of 18 

building height in the R-6 Zoning District is 40’ and the previous Substantial Deviation in 2000 
allows a building height of 56’. The maximum overall height for the proposed project is about 72’ 
and about 62’ for Brookside Place, which is a difference of about 10’.  The garage floor elevation 
or elevation of the land is about a 10’ difference with Brookside Place being about 10’ higher than 
the subject site.  Thus, the proposed buildings will appear to be the same height when viewed 
from afar. Staff also discussed how the proposed buildings are the same number of stories as 
Brookside Place but provide 14’ tall ceilings as an amenity for some of the units. 
 
Open Item #3 – Landscaping. As noted in the Staff Report the Landscape Architect said there 
should be more groupings, relocating some plant material to proved shade in the parking areas 
and removing some mulch and replacing with plants.  Additionally, Staff would like to see plans 
for landscaping on the front part of the terrace.   
 
Staff also noted there are 171 garage spaces, 125 exterior spaces, 64 land-banked spaces with a 
total of 360 parking spaces.  There will be 2.5 parking spaces per unit.  The land-banked spaces 
will not be developed until it is determined they are needed by the developer or the Village.   

 
Additionally, there is approximately 200’ from the existing townhomes structure near the south 
end of the site.   
 
Open Item #4 – Security and Management. The Staff Report notes the Petitioner’s research done 
on comparable multi-family residential developments.  The tenants will access their building and 
the club house via a key card. The tenant cannot access other residential buildings with their key 
card. Security cameras will be provided at entrances/exits. 
 
Open Item #5 – Lighting. The Petitioner plans lighting throughout the private parking lot and 
drive aisles.  There will be lighting near the entrance/exit doors on each building. The Petitioner 
provided updated plans displaying additional lighting. 
 
Open Item #6 – Club house. The Petitioner provided updated plans and renderings showing the 
club house with matching red brick. 
 
Open Item #7 – Foundation Materials. The Petitioner provided a material sample for the 
foundation material.  

 
MS. MALMBORG noted the Petitioner proposes various amenities for the development, including: 
 

1. Semi-underground garage parking (1.18 garage spaces per unit) 
2. A 5,320± square foot club house 

a. Fitness center 
b. Locker rooms 
c. Billiard room 
d. Lounge 
e. Office 
f. Party room 
g. Free Wi-Fi 

3. Outdoor pool 
a. Cabanas 
b. Fire pit 
c. Seating areas 

4. Outdoor terraces 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 16 of 18 

a. Grilling stations with sink 
b. Seating areas 
c. Pergola 
d. Green roofs 

5. Outdoor gaming areas 
6. Bike storage 
7. Electric car charging stations 
8. Disk golf baskets 
9. Outdoor exercise circuits 
10. Fire pits 
11. Open space 
12. Dog park 

 
MS. MALMBORG noted the Dog Park has been relocated to the north end of the development per the 
discussion within the small group meetings over the last few months.   
 
MS. MALMBORG reviewed the proposed signage and stated the proposed freestanding signs meet 
applicable codes.   
 
PAULA WALLRICH, Interim Community Development Director, noted that the Commission should be 
cognizant of the process where meetings were held with the residents of Brookside Glen, Staff, the 
developer, and elected officials.   
 
KARLI MAYHER, Developer, stated the changes were made as a result of the meetings with the 
residents, elected officials, and Staff.  The changes include a new plan for four (4) buildings, and a further 
distance from the existing townhouses.  They are excited to return to the Plan Commission with the new 
plans.   
 
STEVE GREGORY, Eriksson Engineering Assoc., stated they worked very hard with Staff and the 
community to make changes to reach common ground.  He added they provided plans that everyone can 
agree upon.  They want to create value for the structures and provide amenities to insure long term 
viability.  They are putting a lot of money into this development and would not be here if they did not 
think it was valuable.  They want to create an additional housing opportunity for the residents of Tinley 
Park.  They had a market study done and saw there was a need and demand for this type of housing.  This 
will also have a positive economic impact to the Village by bringing more people to Tinley Park.   
 
MR. GREGORY presented renderings of the proposed development.  There will be one elevator in each 
building and there will be garage doors on the end of the north and south buildings to enter and exit the 
garages.  There will be cameras at the entrances and key fobs to enter the buildings and the garages.  
There will be on-site management with hours of operation on Monday through Friday from 9am-5pm, 
Saturday 10am-5pm, and Sunday 12pm-5pm.  There will also be a 24/7 on-call emergency phone number.  
There will be a minimum of one year leases.  The development will meet Tinley Park’s noise ordinance 
regarding the dog park.  They are very excited to work with everyone to bring the best plan on the site.   
 
COMMISSIONER CURRAN asked about what determines the land-banked parking. MR. GREGORY 
replied it would depend on the need determined by the developer and the Village.   
 
COMMISSIONER KRONER asked what is under the terraces.  He also asked who will be responsible to 
clean up after the dogs and asked if one elevator is enough in each building.  He asked if they would 
consider coloring the stone on the foundation.  He asked for clarification on if these were apartments. 
MR. GREGORY replied there are garages under the terraces with entrances and exits on each end of the 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 17 of 18 

north and south buildings.  Parking will be assigned.  The outdoor grills will be on the roof terrace. The 
residents will be responsible to clean up after their own pets and the management will oversee any 
problems.  A study was done regarding having one elevator per building and it is adequate.  They would 
consider coloring the foundation stone.  They would require one year leases.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted he lived in a building with 36 units and one elevator, which was adequate.  
Where the other dog park was located on previous plans is now green space and land-banked parking.  He 
asked if there has there been any consideration of using solar energy.  He asked if the club house is for 
residents only.   He asked if the key fob was only restricted to your own building.  He also asked about 
the composite of the ceilings in the units.  MR. GREGORY replied there has been no consideration of 
solar energy.  The club house is strictly for the residents.  The key fob will open your own building and 
the garage.  The ceilings will be gypsum.   
 
COMMISSIONER GATTO asked if there will be specific buildings that are pet friendly.  MR. 
GREGORY noted there would probably be specific floors designated to pet owners.   
 
COMMISSIONER KRONER asked about cameras at the end of the building and would there be any on 
the terraces and the amenities.  MS. MAYHER replied the cameras will only be at the club house, 
terraces, and entrances – not on the fire pit areas.   
 
COMMISSIONER SHAW asked about the traffic study.  MS. MALMBORG replied Staff has consulted 
the Village Engineer.  Greenway Boulevard/Magnuson Lane will connect north to 191st Street and it will 
be easier to exit and enter the development.  This will be completed as part of this project.  The Village 
Engineer did a daily trip analysis and it is designed for this may dwelling units.  There are improvements 
planned to the I-80 bridge over 80th Avenue and improvements planned at the intersection of 191st and 80th 
Avenue that include adding with turn lanes.   
 
PATRICK CONNELLY, Village Attorney, stated there was a previous meeting with elected officials and 
residents of the Brookside Glen subdivision.  At that meeting there were planning issues brought up, 
including run off issues on the south end of the building.  Some of the residents were concerned about this 
and the lighting in the area.  The traffic was also questioned.  MR. GREGORY replied this will not be an 
issue as there will be a retention area at the north end of the property.  They will have to do some grading 
and this will be addressed with engineering review during the building permit stage. Regarding the 
lighting issues they will have lights that point down and will not point at the existing townhouses. 
Lighting will meet Village codes.  
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted the foundation material should be addressed prior to the Public Hearing.   
 
MR. CONNELLY stated that the debate between ownership in the case of condo vs. apartments is 
something that should not be discussed as part of the review.  This subject is not appropriate for this 
Commission to consider.   
 
COMMISSIONER KRONER would like to hear from the residents.    
 
MR. CONNELLY noted the amount of time the residents, developers, and Staff have put in to bring up 
the concerns has really helped this process.  Kudos to all.   
 
(This was not a Public Hearing; however, the Commission requested that the public give comments 
related to the project. Please reference the Public Comment section of the minutes.)  



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                             October 19,  2017           

Page 18 of 18 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
None at this time.   
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
(Also see attached Addendum with a list of comments supplied by one of the residents.) 
 
Resident #1 - Comment attached.   
 
Resident #2 – Live in Brookside Glen West.  I am impressed with the group that is here.  There should be 
more electric car charging stalls to charge more cars.  Gas cars will eventually be banned.   
 
Resident #3 – The traffic study gets done by the county.  They look at ground study to see if the ground 
can handle this traffic.  We don’t want anything taller. What is this costing?  The roads cannot take this 
traffic.   
 
Resident #4 – Comment attached. 
 
Resident #5 – Comment attached.   
 
Resident #6 – There will be problems with carbon monoxide fumes in the area with the additional traffic 
in the area.   
  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, a Motion was made by COMISSIONER CURRAN, seconded by 
COMMISSIONER MANI, to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission of October 19, 2017 
at 9:47 p.m. The Motion was unanimously approved by voice call.  PLAN COMMISSION CHAIRMAN 
SHAW declared the meeting adjourned. 



PLAN COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
November 2, 2017 

Studio Q – Special Use Permit 
17708 Oak Park Avenue 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Petitioner, Qiana Grant of Studio Q, is requesting a Special Use Permit to allow a 
recreational business use (including group fitness classes) at 17708 Oak Park Avenue in 
the NG (Neighborhood General) Zoning District. 

Quick Facts from the Application: 
• Total Number of Employees: 4
• Business Functionality: Group dance and fitness classes such as Zumba, hip hop,

yoga, and cycling.
• Hours of Operation:

o Monday – Thursday: 9:00am to 11:00am, 6:00pm to 8:00pm
o Friday: 6:00pm to 8:00pm
o Saturday: 9:00am to 11:00am
o Sunday: Closed

• Total Maximum Number of Participants in Fitness Classes at One Time: 30
• Parking Spaces Allotted to Business: 45

Updates from the October 19, 2017 Staff Report are in red. 

Petitioner 
Qiana Grant of Studio Q 

Property Location 
17708 Oak Park Avenue 

PIN 
28-31-103-026-1002

Zoning 
NG (Neighborhood 
General) 

Approval Sought 
Special Use Permit 

Project Planner 
Stephanie Malmborg, AICP 
Planner I 



Studio Q – 17708 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 2 of 7 

SUMMARY OF OPEN ITEMS 
 
Staff identified the following open items for discussion at the workshop: 
 

1. Consider conditions related to sound. 
2. The Petitioner is required to install a bike rack to provide parking for at least two (2) bikes. 

 
 
EXISTING SITE & HISTORY 
 
The subject property, 17708 Oak Park Avenue, consists of a commercial unit within the Tinley Center commercial 
development. The Petitioner’s proposed tenant space is 1,061 square feet and is bordered by Cuzin’s to the east and 
Gateway Learning Center to the west. The previous tenant was a fitness-related use that provided pole dance fitness 
classes.  
 

 
 
The tenant space faces the interior of the parking lot but has access to Oak Park Avenue through the parking lot. 
There is a large quantity of parking (about 170 parking spaces) in the middle of the commercial buildings and the 
tenant was allotted 45 parking spaces. The site has additional parking behind the west building. 
 

 



Studio Q – 17708 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 3 of 7 

ZONING & NEARBY LAND USES 
 
The subject property (see yellow star on graphic below) is zoned NG (Neighborhood General) and is within the 
Legacy District. According to Section XII.2.D.1. of the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance, the NG Zoning District 
is “intended to help transition existing single-family houses and commercial uses into multi-family uses.” This 
property is considered a Heritage Site, otherwise known as a legal nonconforming site, since it is not consistent with 
the Legacy Plan and Legacy Code, which calls for residential uses in this Zoning District.  
 
Nearby land uses include single-family residential and commercial properties to the north (zoned R-4 in light orange 
and NG in purple), single-family attached properties to the south (zoned R-6 in brown), single-family residential to 
the west (zoned R-1 in light yellow), and commercial and mixed-uses across Oak Park Avenue to the east (zoned NG 
in purple). 
 
Some tenants in Tinley Center include Cuzin’s, Gateway Learning Center, Farmers Insurance, and Tinley Park Tax 
Center. The Petitioner notes that Gateway Learning Center is adjacent to the west of the Studio Q tenant 
space. Gateway Learning Center is not open during the Petitioner’s proposed hours; therefore, there should 
be no issues with loud music during times that students are tutored at Gateway Learning Center.  If the 
hours of operation should change, the Village’s nuisance ordinance and performance standards will be used 
in response to any complaints.  
 

  



Studio Q – 17708 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 4 of 7 

PROPOSED USE 
 
The Petitioner proposes to open a business called Studio Q that provides group fitness classes to clients. The 
proposed fitness classes include Zumba, hip hop, yoga, and cycling. There will be one class taught at a time and 
classes will not overlap because there will be fifteen (15) minutes between classes. Classes will be 30 minutes to 1 
hour long. There will be 25-30 clients per class. The Petitioner anticipates a membership program that will assist 
with anticipating class size. There will be up to four (4) employees. 
 
The Petitioner states that she is a certified dance instructor for Zumba, Werq, and choreography and has worked as 
a dance and fitness instructor at various health and fitness facilities. This will be Studio Q’s first location. 
 
The proposed hours of operation are: 

• Monday – Thursday: 9:00am to 11:00am, 6:00pm to 8:00pm 
• Friday: 6:00pm to 8:00pm 
• Saturday: 9:00am to 11:00am 
• Sunday: Closed 

 
Why the Petitioner Needs a Special Use Permit 
Per Table 3.A.2. within Section XII.3.A., “Amusement and recreation establishments including bowling alleys, billiard 
parlors, coin-operated amusement devices, gymnasiums, swimming pools, dance halls, health clubs, skating rinks 
and other similar places of recreation” are a Special Use in the Legacy District. These types of uses are considered as 
Special Uses because of the possible impacts of such things as parking, loud music playing during fitness classes, 
and hours of operation. The Special Use Permit process provides the Plan Commission the opportunity to place 
certain conditions on the Special Use to mitigate these concerns. 
 
 
SOUND 
 
Studio Q will share walls with Cuzin’s and Gateway Learning Center. The Plan Commission may wish to consider 
conditions related to sound to ensure that the adjacent tenants are not subject to loud music projecting into their 
commercial space. Staff notes that Tinley Park embraces music as our Village’s brand; however, we want to make 
sure that music in commercial spaces is not a nuisance to other businesses or to nearby residents.  
 
Staff recommends conditions consistent with what the Plan Commission recommended for Mile 1 Fitness, which is: 
 
“That sound shall not exceed 50 dB when measured from outside the tenant space (exterior of the building or within 
the adjacent tenant space). Sound shall not cause a nuisance to other tenant spaces or surrounding properties. The 
Petitioner will be required to do soundproofing if there are valid complaints regarding noise.” 
 
Open Item #1: Consider conditions related to sound. 
 
 

  



Studio Q – 17708 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 5 of 7 

PARKING 
 
The site has over 160 parking spaces in the main parking lot with additional parking provided behind the west 
building. The Petitioner states that her lease includes forty-five (45) parking spaces. Parking is also shared 
throughout the site. Staff studied the parking lot to see the parking availability at the Petitioner’s proposed times of 
business. Staff notes that the parking lot consistently had many spaces available during these times. Additionally, 
the proposed hours are limited to a few hours in the morning and evenings and do not overlap normal business 
hours. Many tenants within Tinley Center are by appointment only or offer limited hours. 
 
The tenant/property owner is required install a bike rack that allows parking for two (2) bikes per Section 
XII.2.D.10.c. of the Zoning Ordinance. Since this is part of a large commercial center, the association may wish to 
consider a large shared bike parking area to accommodate the requirements for bike parking for all tenants. Staff 
did not see any bike parking at the site. 
 
Open Item #2: The Petitioner is required to install a bike rack to provide parking for at least two (2) bikes. 
 
 
REQUIRED SITE IMPROVEMENTS 
 
Per Section XII.2.D.11.d. of the Zoning Ordinance, a Special Use triggers certain required improvements. See the 
image of Table 2.D.8. below. 

 

 
 

Staff inspected the site and noted areas where the required improvements could be made. This tenant space is part 
of a larger commercial center with multiple property owners. The building and parking lot are in good shape and do 
not require regular maintenance tasks at this time. The landscaping near the tenant space is non-existent and there 
is not room to add potted plants outside the doorway to attempt to meet the spirit of the landscape requirement 
due to ADA requirements for sidewalk widths in front of the tenant space. The site is nonconforming with respect to 
the intent of the Legacy Plan and Legacy Code, so it will be difficult to achieve changes with the access drive or alley 
due to the constraints of the existing site. 
 

  



Studio Q – 17708 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 6 of 7 

STANDARDS FOR A SPECIAL USE 
 
Section X.J.5. of the Zoning Ordinance lists standards that need to be considered by the Plan Commission. The Plan 
Commission is encouraged to consider these standards (listed below) when analyzing a Special Use request. Staff 
provided draft Findings below for the Public Hearing. 

 
X.J.5. Standards: No Special Use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission unless said Commission shall find: 
 

a. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the Special Use will not be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 

• The proposed Special Use will not be detrimental because the business operations are 
wholly enclosed within the building and the business will provide health and fitness 
training to clients. 

 
b. That the Special Use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 
the neighborhood; 

• The Special Use is compatible with the other tenants in the shopping center and other 
properties in the vicinity. 

 
c. That the establishment of the Special Use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; 
• The Special Use will fill a vacancy within the commercial center. The proposed use is 

harmonious with the existing tenants. The proposed hours of operation are generally 
opposite of normal business hours so parking or sound conflicts will be minimal. 

 
d. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or other necessary facilities have been or are being 

provided; 
• The site already exists and adequate roads, drainage, and other necessary facilities 

are provided. 
 

e. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets; and 

• Ingress and egress already exists. There is access from Oak Park Avenue. 
 

f. That the Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in 
which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the Village Board 
pursuant to the recommendation of the Plan Commission.  The Village Board shall impose such 
conditions and restrictions upon the premises benefited by a Special Use Permit as may be necessary to 
ensure compliance with the above standards, to reduce or minimize the effect of such permit upon 
other properties in the neighborhood, and to better carry out the general intent of this Ordinance.  
Failure to comply with such conditions or restrictions shall constitute a violation of this Ordinance. 

• The Special Use will conform to all other applicable regulations for the site. 
 

g. The extent to which the Special Use contributes directly or indirectly to the economic development of 
the community as a whole. 

• The Special Use contributes to the economic development of the community by 
occupying a vacant space. In addition, the Petitioner, who has a background in fitness, 
will provide fitness classes that will aid clients to develop healthier lifestyles. Clients 
may choose to patronize neighboring businesses, strengthening the center’s co-
tenancy as businesses share customers. 



Studio Q – 17708 Oak Park Avenue 
 

Page 7 of 7 

 
It is also important to recognize that a Special Use Permit does not run with the land and instead the Special Use 
Permit is tied to the Applicant. This is different from a process such as a variance, since a variance will forever apply 
to the property to which it is granted. Staff encourages the Plan Commission to refer to Section X.J.6. to examine the 
conditions where a Special Use Permit will expire. 
 

MOTION TO CONSIDER 
 
If the Plan Commission wishes to take action, the following motion is in the appropriate form: 
 
“… make a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Qiana Grant of Studio Q, a Special Use 
Permit to allow a recreational business use (including group fitness classes) at 17708 Oak Park Avenue in the NG 
(Neighborhood General) Zoning District.” 
 
…The Plan Commission recommends the following conditions: 
 

1. That sound shall not exceed 50 dB when measured from outside the tenant space (exterior of the building 
or within the adjacent tenant space). Sound shall not cause a nuisance to other tenant spaces or 
surrounding properties. The Petitioner will be required to do soundproofing if there are valid complaints 
regarding noise. 
 

2. That bike parking for at least two (2) bikes be provided at the site. 
 

3. (any other conditions that the Plan Commission wishes to recommend) 
 

 









1

Stephanie Kisler

From: qiana grant <qiana.grant@yahoo.com>
Sent: Thursday, September 28, 2017 12:06 AM
To: Stephanie Kisler
Subject: Re: Studio Q Special Use Permit Request

 
 
 
1) No, I do not have any other locations. 
 
2) My background woth this type of business os I have been a dancer since I was 5 yrs old including performing 
arts, modern, and praise dance. As well as a former dance/cheer team in grammar school and high school. In 
addition, I am a certified dance instructor of formats such as zumba, (salsa, Latin), Werq ( hip hop/pop 
choreography dance for 12 yrs.  I havr worked as a dance/fitness instructor for various health/ fitness facilities 
such as  women' workout world, la fitness and currently xsport fitness. 
 
3) I will have 4 employees  which will include 4 dance instructors. 
 
4)Hours of operation: 
 
Mon-thurs 
9am-11am 
6pm-8pm 
 
Fri 
6pm-8pm 
 
Sat 
9am-11am 
 
Sun 
Closed 
 
5) A) 
The type of classes will be zumba (salsa, latin), WerQ( pop/hip hop choreography)  
and dancehall/afrobeats. 
B) 
Classes will be 1hr and they will not overlap. There will be  three 30min classes.  
C) Classes will nog overlap, there will be 15mins between each class. 
D) The number of people in class will be 25-30 people. This will also be based on memberships where I can 
keep tract of traffic as well. 
 
6) A)Yes parking is shared between businesses which  are not having traffic at the same time. 



2

B) according to my lanlord, I have 45 parking spaces for the rented space. There is plenty of parking space
during day and evening.
C) There are approximately 125 parking spaces.

8) The other tenents are
1) Gateway learning center-( next door)appt. Only
2)Farmers Insurance(2 doors down)
Mon-fri-9am-5pm, Sat-9am-1p, Sun 9am-1pm
3) Tinley park tax center-appt. Only

4)Cuzins pizza/restaurant &bar- 11am-2am.

9) The music that will be played will be the music for class purposes such as latin, salsa, pop, etc. The music
will be background music and will not disturb any of the other businesses. Also, due to the alternate hours of
some of the other businesses,  music will not be played ay the same time as some operation  hours.
The studio that I am requesting also was a pole studio for 10yrs according to landlord in which there was
various music played that did not interfere  with the other tenents. Also, there is cuzins bar/restaurant where
there is a live band that plays music and a place of recreation, this location is two doors down. Due to my
operatuon hours, the neighborhood businesses will not bw operating during that time, however after playing
music in my studio it is not disturbing to the other businesses.

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android 

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android 

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android 

<skisler@tinleypark.org> wrote: 

Hi Qiana, 

We are working on the next steps for your Special Use Permit request for your business, Studio Q, and I need 
some more information for your application. Please answer the following questions and provide information so 
we can get your request on an upcoming Plan Commission agenda. 

1. Do you have any other locations?



3

  

2.      What is your background with this type of business? 

  

3.      How many employees will you have? Include total and the number of employees that will be at the business 
at any given time. 

  

4.      What are your hours of operation? 

  

5.      Provide more information about the classes: 

a.     Types of classes 

b.     Duration of classes 

c.     Number of people in the classes 

d.     Will classes overlap? 

  

6.      Provide information about parking: 

a.     Is parking shared among all of the businesses in that center? 

b.     Do you have any parking spaces that are specifically dedicated to your business? 

c.     How many spaces are in the parking lot? 

  

7.      Provide a conceptual floor plan for the interior of the space. This can be something you draw out and sketch 
in where you will put your equipment, office, restrooms, etc. 

  

8.      Provide a list of the other tenants in the center. Include their hours of operation. 

  

9.      Provide information about the music that will be played. Our concerns are about the sound and how loud 
music could affect the other businesses near you. Will it just be background music? Have you tried playing 
music in your tenant space and then going to the spaces next door to see if they can hear the music? 

  



4

  

  

Stephanie Kisler, AICP 

Planner I 

(708) 444-5161  |  skisler@tinleypark.org  

  

 

  





PLAN COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
November 2, 2017 

The Residence of Brookside Glen 
Southwest corner of 191st Street and Magnuson Lane 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Petitioner, Andrea Crowley of Griffin & Gallagher, LLC on behalf of Karli Mayher and 
KJM-Vandenberg Brookside Joint Venture, seeks Site Plan Approval and a Special Use 
Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) with three (3) Exceptions from the Zoning Ordinance for front yard setback, building 
height, and parking setback. 

The Petitioner previously requested approval to construct two (2) multi-family residential 
structures with seventy-two (72) dwelling units per building for a total of 144 dwelling 
units. This proposal also included a 3,500± square foot club house, landscaping, and 
various amenities throughout the development. The proposal was not approved by the 
Village Board.   

Subsequent to the non-approval of the two building proposal, the Developer met with 
Village Staff, elected officials, and representatives from the Brookside Glen subdivision to 
address the overall site plan and proposed amenities. Additionally, a community meeting 
was held with Brookside Glen residents, the Village Attorney, and Trustees Mike Glotz and 
Mike Mangin, in response to questions from the residents regarding zoning, past 
approvals, and the Developer’s new proposal.  The Petitioner is currently proposing to 
construct four (4) multi-family residential structures with thirty-six (36) dwelling units per 
building for a total of 144 dwelling units. This proposal also includes a 5,320± square foot 
club house, landscaping, and various amenities throughout the development. 

Updates from the October 19, 2017 Staff Report are indicated in red. 

Petitioner 
Andrea Crowley of Griffin 
& Gallagher, LLC on 
behalf of Karli Mayher 
and KJM-Vandenberg 
Brookside Joint Venture 

Property Location 
SW Corner of 191st Street 
and Magnuson Lane 

PINs 
19-09-11-200-015-0000
19-09-11-200-013-0000

Zoning 
R-6 PD

Approvals Sought 
Site Plan Approval and 
Special Use Permit for a 
Substantial Deviation 
from the Brookside Glen 
Planned Unit 
Development 

Project Planners 

Paula J. Wallrich, AICP 
Interim Community 
Development Director 

Stephanie Malmborg, AICP 
Planner I 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 2 of 33 

SUMMARY OF OPEN ITEMS 
 
Staff identified the following open items for discussion at the workshop: 
 

1. Consider an Exception for the front yard setback to allow the structures to be set back about 18’ to 27’ from 
the east property line. 

2. Consider an Exception for the building height to allow the structures at a maximum building height of 65’. 
3. Minor revisions are required on the Landscape Plan. 
4. Information is needed about the plans for security and management of the property.   
5. Lighting is required near all entrances/exits to the structures. The Petitioner must submit plans showing 

adequate lighting provided by fixtures complimentary to the architectural style of the structures.  
6. Revise elevations to include reddish brown brick accents on the club house. 
7. Provide material sample for the foundation of the building. 

 
See “Plan Commission Workshop” on page 18 for workshop discussion and follow up information. 
 
EXISTING SITE & HISTORY 
 
Note: A detailed outline of the chronology for the subject parcel is attached within the Brookside Glen Timeline document. 
 
The subject site is a 7.65 acre parcel within the Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development (PUD). The Brookside 
Glen PUD was approved as part of an annexation of 828 acres in 1990.  Since that time there have been 
amendments to the Agreement as well as several PUD modifications and rezonings.  This is not atypical for a 
property of this size that has had to respond to market trends and fluctuating economic conditions over time.  The 
subject property was originally planned for a mixture of commercial, office/restricted industrial, and residential uses 
(single-family detached, townhomes, and condo/apartments). 
 
In 2000, a Substantial Deviation from the PUD was approved and allowed the developer to construct nine (9) 4-story, 
16 unit condo buildings on the subject site, similar to the housing types that currently exist near the southeast 
corner of 80th Avenue and Greenway Boulevard and Fire Station #4 (known as Brookside Place).  This project was 
never constructed and Staff has been unable to locate final plans for the project. Since that time, there have been a 
few other proposals, including a condominium development proposal with nine 8-unit buildings and one 16-unit 
building submitted in 2007. In 2014, a proposal was submitted for 123 units in 17 buildings comprised of between 4 
to 15 attached single-family rowhouse dwelling units per building. Neither project was approved. 
 
In February, 2016, the Village was approached by the Petitioner, Karli Mayher, who proposed to develop the 7.65 
acre parcel. The initial application and plans were submitted in July 2016. However, her proposal was for two (2) 
buildings instead of the nine (9) buildings that were approved per Ordinance 2000-O-006, yet the proposed 
development maintained the same density (18.8 du/ac) and unit count (144 dwelling units).  As part of the 
Petitioner’s study of the residential market they discovered that financing for condo developments is becoming 
increasingly more difficult due to the subprime mortgage crisis and the trend was moving away from home 
ownership (condos).  
 
The Petitioner’s proposed two (2) building plan was presented to the Plan Commission at the May 18, 2017, June 1, 
2017, and June 28, 2017 meetings. The Plan Commission recommended denial for the Special Use Permit and Site 
Plan. The project was reviewed by the Village Board at the July 10, 2017 meeting where the Village Board voted to 
concur with the Plan Commission and deny approval for the project. Multiple meetings were held between July and 
October 2017 which included Staff, elected officials, the Petitioner, and representatives from the Brookside Glen 
subdivision. The participants discussed alternate plans that would address concerns about the scale of the buildings 
while maintaining valuable amenities and high-quality aesthetics. The current proposed plans are the result of these 
meetings. 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 3 of 33 

ZONING & NEARBY LAND USES 
 
According to the Official Zoning Map, the property is zoned R-5 PD (Low Density Residential) and the site is part of 
the Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development (PUD). Upon further research by Staff it has been determined that 
the original annexation documents approved R-6 zoning for this property; however, the original rezoning ordinance 
is missing an exhibit that clarifies the locations of each zoning district within the PUD. All references in the 
annexation ordinance point to this site and the location of the existing Brookside Place multi-family structures being 
zoned R-6. Staff notes there is no documentation of rezoning this site to R-5, although the Zoning Map labels the 
site R-5.  
 
The site is bordered by the ComEd transmission lines to the west, B-3 PD (General Business and Commercial 
District) to the east, R-5 PD to the south and southeast and R-2 PD (Single-Family Residential) to the far south.   The 
site is located within the Urban Design Overlay District (UD-1) that is intended to regulate non-residential buildings 
to “accommodate the automobile, but are primarily designed to promote non-motorized and public transportation 
movements to, within, and among properties”. UD-1 attempts to create a streetscape that is defined by buildings 
rather than parking lots.  Although this is a residential building, it has some commercial ”character” due to its scale, 
surface parking, and recreational component (club house); therefore, Staff supports aspects of the Site Plan that are 
consistent with the UD-1 Overlay District. Additionally, there will eventually be commercial development to the east 
which will need to comply with the regulations for the UD-1 Overlay District. 
 

 
Graphic Showing Zoning in the Vicinity of the Site According to the Zoning Map 

 
  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 4 of 33 

Surrounding land uses include vacant property to the 
east that is planned and zoned for commercial uses.  
A municipal pumping station is located immediately 
to the south and a townhome development exists to 
the southeast with two-story structures housing 4-6 
units per structure.   
 
East of 80th Avenue there are other planned 
commercial uses that are vacant in addition to 
townhomes and 4-story multi-family condominium 
buildings of 16 units each. These multi-family 
structures are designed similarly to the proposed 
project in that they are effectively 5-story buildings 
due to the semi-underground parking garage. A 
detention pond is located to the north of the subject site and functions as a buffer to 191st Street. The Wolverine 
Pipeline traverses the site (east to west) just north of the pumping station. 
 
The underlying zoning district provides for certain bulk regulations, as does the UD-1.  As a Planned Unit 
Development, deviations from these requirements are considered ‘exceptions’ and are not reviewed as a ‘true’ 
variation from the Zoning Ordinance; instead, they are reviewed in context of the approved PUD.  The Commission 
may wish to evaluate these deviations using the PUD Standards and Criteria for a PUD (Sections VII.C.1. and VII.C.3). 
As a Special Use, Staff will provide Findings of Fact at the Public Hearing consistent with the Special Use standards in 
Section X.J.5 of the Zoning Ordinance.  Any exceptions that Staff has noted during the review are identified 
throughout this report. 
 
The Village’s Comprehensive Plan indicates the subject site as residential. 
 

 
Excerpt from the Village’s Comprehensive Plan (2000); Subject Site Noted with Blue Rectangle  

  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 5 of 33 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST 
 
The issue before the Plan Commission is approval of a Substantial Deviation from the Brookside Glen Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) approved in 1990 and the subsequent Substantial Deviation in 2000.  For the past 27 years this 
PUD has evolved; reacting to market demands and economics.  See the attached timeline for specific references to 
approvals and ordinances related to this property. The original PUD of 828 acres provided for a mix of uses as 
illustrated below.  The Annexation Agreement (90-R-002) references this exhibit (Exhibit C) and the proposed 
location of uses.  The subject property (Part of Parcel C) is highlighted in yellow.   
 

 
Excerpt of Exhibit C within Resolution 90-R-002 with “Parcel C” Areas Highlighted 

 
The Petitioner’s request is to deviate from Ordinance 2000-O-006 (Substantial Deviation from the Brookside Glen 
PUD), which approved nine (9) structures of sixteen (16) dwelling units each for this property (total of 144 units) to 
construct four (4) structures of thirty-six (36) dwelling units each (total of 144 units) and a club house with a pool 
and other various residential amenities. 
 
The Petitioner requests a Substantial Deviation from the Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development (within 
Ordinance 2000-O-006) to develop a one hundred forty-four (144) unit multi-family (apartment) residential 
project within four (4) residential structures connected by semi-underground parking. Ordinance 2000-O-006 
allows one hundred forty-four (144) dwelling units within nine (9) buildings. The club house will also be 
located above the semi-underground parking garage between the residential structures. The proposed 
Substantial Deviation will reduce the number of residential structures from nine (9) to four (4). 

 
The Petitioner is not requesting a rezoning of the property.  The zoning on the subject property was established as 
part of the original PUD upon annexation in 1990.  The Annexation Agreement references zoning for this area (see 
90-R-002). There was no specific development proposal for Parcel C until 1999-2000 when the a developer 
requested a Substantial Deviation that would reduce the townhome area planned within the PUD in exchange for an 
increase in the number of single-family homes and an increase in the building height for the condominiums 
proposed for Parcel C.  The only reference to rezoning in the Substantial Deviation in 2000 was for a portion of the 
townhome area (R-5) to be rezoned to (R-2) Single-Family Residential. 
 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 6 of 33 

UNDERSTANDING PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS (PUDs) 
 
In 1990, the annexation of 828 acres was a significant endeavor for the Village of Tinley Park.  To plan for a 
development of this magnitude, the Village utilized a common master planning technique by annexing the parcel as 
a PUD.  It is important to understand that a PUD inherently provides flexibility in its planning and zoning.  The PUD 
approved in 1990 provided a master plan for the 828 acre property as a guide to its future potential.  As stated in 
Section VII of the Zoning Ordinance, the purpose of a Planned Unit Development is “to facilitate and encourage the 
construction of imaginative and coordinated developments and to provide relief from the subdivision and zoning 
requirements which are designed for conventional developments, but which may inhibit innovation of design and 
cause undue hardship with regard to developing a parcel of land to its best possible use.”  When analyzing a 
development proposal in a PUD the underlying zoning is ‘suspended’ and the review is guided by the overall intent 
of the PUD and the standards established for Special Uses (Section X.5.) and Planned Unit Developments (Section 
VII.C.)  Staff has prepared findings utilizing these standards in the section below. 
 

EXCEPTIONS 
 
The Petitioner requests the following Exceptions from the Zoning Ordinance: 
 

1. Building Setback 
The proposed Site Plan shows the residential structures at front yard setbacks that vary from about 18’ to 
27’ from the east property line. As seen in the table below, the proposed building setbacks straddle the two 
front yard setback regulations. As a point of reference, the Brookside Place development has similar scale 
with respect to height and has front yard setbacks ranging from 24’ to 30’. The intent of both the R-6 and 
UD-1 regulations is met by the proposed setbacks since the buildings front the street while also maintaining 
a distance similar to Brookside Place. 
 

R-6 Front Yard Setback 
Requirement for  

Multi-Family Structures 

UD-1 Front Yard Setback 
Requirement Proposed Setbacks 

25’ minimum 20’ maximum About 18’ – 27’ 

 
It is important to consider the scale of the building when thinking about the most suitable setbacks. Due to 
the height and scale of the buildings, increased setbacks provide opportunity for additional landscaping and 
berming against the foundation wall. Additionally, the curvature of the street and the resulting sight lines 
along with the curvature of the building façade serve to minimize the scale of the building. This all 
contributes to the mitigation of the scale of the building and provide for a more pedestrian scale to the 
streetscape.  
 
Open Item #1: Consider an Exception for the front yard setback to allow the structures to be set back 
about 18’ to 27’ from the east property line. 
 
 

2. Building Height 
The Petitioner requests an Exception from the Zoning Ordinance and the previous Substantial Deviation 
(Ordinance 2000-O-006) to allow for the residential structures to be taller than what is allowed. The 
proposed increase in height provides an amenity for those dwelling units by offering floor-to-ceiling 
windows on the fourth floor and the end units on the third floor. Additionally, the height provides for 
varying roof heights thus breaking up a large expanse of roof area; this creates an aesthetically pleasing roof 
line that adds variety to the look of the top of the structure. 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 7 of 33 

The table below compares the proposed structures to the existing multi-family residential structures known 
as Brookside Place (located east of 80th Avenue along Greenway Boulevard) and provides the regulations 
from the Zoning Ordinance and the previous Substantial Deviation (Ordinance 2000-O-006). As the table 
indicates, although the proposed buildings are approximately ten feet (10’) taller at the highest point (the 
middle roof), the actual elevation will be consistent with Brookside Place since the elevation at the subject 
site is approximately ten feet (10’) lower than the elevation at Brookside Place.  
 
 

Residence of 
Brookside Glen 

Brookside Place 

Difference 
Between 

Residence & 
Brookside 

Place  

Zoning 
Ordinance 
Regulation 

(R-6) 

Ordinance 
2000-O-006 
Regulation 

Number of Stories 
4 + semi-

underground 
parking garage 

4 + semi-
underground 

parking garage 
none - 4 

Mean Roof Height* 64’-11.75” 55’-5.25” 9’-6.5” 40’ 56’ 

Maximum Overall 
Height of Building 

72’-2.375” 62’-3.25” 9’-11.125” - - 

Garage Floor 
Elevation 700.5’ – 702’ 710’ – 713’ 10.5’ – 12.5’ - - 

Elevation at Top of 
Roof 

772’-8.375” –  
774’-2.375” 

772’-3.25” –  
775’-3.25” 

5” – 1’-1” - - 

* This is the “Building Height” as defined in Section II in the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

 
Renderings of Building from The Residence of Brookside Glen and Building at Brookside Place 

 
Staff also notes that the units in the proposed Residence of Brookside Glen will have taller ceilings than the 
units within the existing Brookside Place buildings. The taller ceiling height is an additional amenity for the 
dwelling units and will make the space feel larger while providing more natural light through larger windows. 
The table below illustrates the difference in the heights. 
 

 Residence of 
Brookside Glen Brookside Place Difference  

First Floor 14’ 10’-10” +3’-2” 

Typical Floor 10’ 9’-4” +8” 

Top Floor 14’ 8’-6” +5’-6” 

 
Open Item #2: Consider an Exception for the building height to allow the structures at a maximum 
building height of 65’. 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 8 of 33 

SITE PLAN & DETAILS 
 
The Petitioner submitted revised plans on October 2, 2017. These plans include four (4) multi-family residential 
structures with thirty-six (36) dwelling units per building for a total of 144 dwelling units. The floor plan shows a 
mixture of one and two bedroom units. The plans indicate a semi-underground parking garage connecting the 
residential structures and club house along the curvature of Magnuson Lane/Greenway Boulevard. The first floors 
of the residential structures are connected by outdoor terraces with partial green roofs. The Petitioner has 
increased the size of the original proposal and included a second floor per Staff request. It is located in the center of 
the development and includes various indoor and outdoor amenities, such as a fitness center, pool, and cabanas. 
The leasing office is located on the first floor. The new elevations show balconies for each unit and floor-to-ceiling 
windows for the fourth floor units and some third floor units. 
 

 
 

Proposed Site Plan 
 
Landscape Plan 
The proposed Landscape Plan provides plant material throughout the site. The Village’s Landscape Architect 
identified minor revisions for the Landscape Plan, including:  

• creating more groupings of plants rather than linear patterns;  
• relocating some plant material to provide shade in the parking lot and drive aisles; and 
• removing the mulch only areas in the parking lot.  

 
The Petitioner stated that they are willing to comply with all Village requirements for landscaping. The Plan 
Commission may consider approving the plans conditioned upon final review by the Village’s Landscape Architect 
and Staff. 
 
Open Item #3: Minor revisions are required on the Landscape Plan. 
 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 9 of 33 

 
Proposed Landscape Plan 

 
Parking & Circulation 
The Petitioner’s proposed Site Plan includes parking behind the buildings as well as within a semi-underground 
garage. The plans include 144 dwelling units, so 360 parking spaces are required per Section VIII.A.10. of the Zoning 
Ordinance (144 x 2.5 spaces per dwelling unit = 360). The Petitioner is providing 296 spaces upon initial 
construction, which yields 2.05 parking spaces per unit. The additional 64 parking spaces will be land banked and 
will be completed if Staff identifies a need for additional parking in the future.  
 

Parking Breakdown 
• Garage Spaces: 171 
• Exterior Spaces: 125 
• Exterior Spaces (Land Banked): 64 
• Total Parking Spaces: 360 

 
The Petitioner does not anticipate the need for 2.5 parking spaces per unit, especially since there are 60 one 
bedroom units. The Petitioner anticipates that 2 spaces per dwelling will be sufficient since the unit mix is only 
composed of one and two bedroom units. In addition, the development will be marketed to young professionals 
that are seeking access to public transportation and therefore often require only one (1) vehicle per household. The 
Petitioner has agreed to land bank parking spaces and construct them if needed in the future. This requires 
providing space for parking but not improving it until a need is established. As a result this will create additional 
green space for the development until such time as the parking is needed (or not needed). The parking areas that 
will be land banked will be spaces located nearest Magnuson Lane, thereby parking will primarily be located behind 
the structures to meet the intent of the Urban Design Overlay District This would not necessarily constitute an 
exception since the total number of required parking spaces will be provided. This is an acceptable practice within 
the context of a PUD. Staff recommends notation of the land banking as part of the Special Use conditions. 
 
The site will be accessed by 80th Avenue or 191st Street via Greenway Boulevard/Magnuson Lane. The site has a total 
of four (4) curb cuts along Magnuson Lane – one at the north end, one at the south end (which will also allow access 
to the existing pumping station), and two for a circle drive at the club house that is centered along the curve of the 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 10 of 33 

street. The Petitioner provided a turning radius analysis per the Fire Department requirements and the analysis 
indicates that the proposed Site Plan provides satisfactory widths for the life safety purposes. 
 
Residents voiced concern about how the addition of 144 dwelling units at this site may impact traffic on nearby 
streets. One of the Village’s Engineering Consultants, Robinson Engineering, provided a memo discussing traffic near 
Brookside Glen at 191st Street and 80th Avenue (attached).  Chris King, PE, noted that the western portion of 
Greenway Boulevard/Magnuson Lane must be reconstructed and connected north to 191st Street. According to the 
memo, most trips will occur at the new connection at Greenway Boulevard/Magnuson Lane and 191st Street rather 
than at Greenway Boulevard and 80th Avenue. Additionally, intersection improvements are planned for the 
intersection of 191st Street and 80th Avenue and Will County plans to design the improvements in 2019 and 
construct the improvements in 2020. 
 
Additionally, in an attempt to meet the intent of the Urban Design Overlay District’s regulations, the Petitioner has 
located the majority of the surface parking behind the buildings. The regulations call for parking to be set back a 
minimum of twenty-five feet (25’) in front yards. All parking within the current plans meets this requirement. 
 
Trash Enclosures 
There are two (2) exterior dumpster enclosures proposed. One is located in the northwest corner of the site (north 
of Building 4) and one is located at the south end of the site (just south of Building 1). The enclosures will be 
constructed with face brick to match the exterior building materials on the residential structures. Additionally, the 
Petitioner notes that the buildings will have interior trash rooms for where residents will dispose of their trash. The 
management will be responsible for bringing the trash from the interior collection room to the exterior enclosure. 
 
Distance from Adjacent Townhomes 
The residents in the nearby townhomes were concerned with the distance between the proposed buildings and the 
existing townhomes. Building 1 (south building) of the proposed multi-family structure will be close to  200 feet from 
the existing townhome structure near the south end of the site. 
 

 
Graphic Showing Distance Between Existing Townhome and Proposed Building #1 

 
 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 11 of 33 

Security & Management 
During the previous plan review, residents expressed some concerns about security and property management. Per 
Staff’s request the Petitioner researched other comparable multi-family residential developments in order to 
compare best practices. A table with the Petitioner’s research is provided below. The Petitioner will provide 
additional information about the proposed security and management of the development at the Plan Commission 
meeting. 
 

Residential 
Development 

# of 
Units 

Security 
Cameras 

Cameras 
Monitored 

Door
man 

On-Site 24/7 
Maintenance 

Management 
Hours  

(Monday-Friday) 

Management 
Hours 

(Saturday) 

Management 
Hours  

(Sunday) 
Ninety7Fifty 295 Yes As needed No On Call 

Emergency 
8am-5pm On Call 

Emergency 
On Call 

Emergency 
Orland 
Crossing 

231 Yes As needed No On Call 
Emergency 

9am-6pm 10am -5pm 12pm - 5pm 

Avant Lisle 310 Yes As needed No On Call 
Emergency 

9am-6pm 12pm -6 pm 12pm - 5pm 

Amli Deerfield 240 Yes As needed No On Call 
Emergency 

10 am -6 pm 10 am -6 pm 12pm - 5pm 

Amli 7 Bridges 520 No N/A No Yes 10 am -6 pm 12pm -6 pm 12pm - 5pm 

Amli St. 
Charles 

400 No N/A No On Call 
Emergency 

10 am -6 pm 12pm -6 pm 12pm - 5pm 

The Residences 
at the Grove 

296 Yes As needed No On Call 
Emergency 

9am-6pm 9am-5pm 12pm -5pm 

 
Open Item #4: Information is needed about the plans for security and management of the property. 
 
Lighting 
The Petitioner’s plans show lighting throughout the private parking lot and drive aisles. The Photometric Plan does 
not indicate the use of wall sconces. Lighting should be added near the entrance/exit doors on each building. 
 

 
Photometric Plan with Lighting Areas Highlighted 

 
Open Item #5: Lighting is required near all entrances/exits to the structures. The Petitioner must submit plans 
showing adequate lighting provided by fixtures complimentary to the architectural style of the structures. 
 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 12 of 33 

Amenities 
The Petitioner is providing numerous amenities for the future tenants at the site, including: 

1. Semi-underground garage parking 
2. A 5,320± square foot club house 

a. Fitness center 
b. Locker rooms 
c. Billiard room 
d. Lounge 
e. Office 
f. Party room 
g. Free Wi-Fi 

3. Outdoor pool 
a. Cabanas 
b. Fire pit 
c. Seating areas 

4. Outdoor terraces 
a. Grilling stations with sink 
b. Seating areas 
c. Fireplace/fire pits 
d. Pergola 
e. Green roofs 

5. Outdoor gaming areas 
6. Bike storage 
7. Electric car charging stations 
8. Disk golf baskets 
9. Outdoor exercise circuits 
10. Fireplace/fire pits with pergolas 
11. Open space 
12. Dog park 

 
Dog Park 
Based on discussions at the previous Plan Commission meetings and small group meetings over the last few 
months the Petitioner relocated the dog park to the north end of the site. The south end will remain green for 
passive open space. Staff also notes that some of this south green space includes land banked parking. 
 
 
  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 13 of 33 

ARCHITECTURE 
 
The four (4) proposed residential structures will all be architecturally identical. The structures include a semi-
underground parking garage and four (4) stories of residential dwellings. The building height is about 65’ (see the 
discussion within the Exceptions – Building Height section of this report for more information). The architecture 
includes some aspects of a prairie style with the slope of the roof and transom windows.  The floor to ceiling 
windows add distinction reflective of loft type architecture.  
 
The fully masonry structure includes a roof line is varied to provide enhanced architectural interest helping to break 
up the expanse of the roof. Articulation is provided along all building facades to create visual interest and shadow 
lines. The entrance provides a focal point with the center of the structure being the tallest. The Petitioner is also 
berming the base of the structure with landscaping at varied heights to minimize exposure of the parking level. 
Terraces above the parking level connect the residential structures to a centrally-located club house. The roof 
terraces are screened from Magnuson Lane with the heavily landscaped foundation and green roof. 
 
Although the primary access is from the west side of the structure, access has also been provided on the east 
façade to activate the street face. This is consistent with the intent of the Overlay District.  This will be important as 
future commercial areas develop across the street. 
 

 
Elevation of One Residential Building (Parking Lot/West Side of Building) 

 

 
Elevation of One Residential Building (Magnuson Lane/East Side of Building) 

 
  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 14 of 33 

Club House 
The club house is centrally located with access from a circle drive off of Magnuson Lane. The structure has ground 
level access on the east and west side of the building and the parking garage traverses through the lower level. The 
upper level provides a 5,320± square foot space with various amenities, including a fitness center and event space.  
Then architecture also encompasses some aspects of Prairie architecture consistent with the residential buildings.  
A final color rendering will be provided at the meeting. 
 

 
Rendering of the East Side of the Club House 

Dwelling Units 
The buildings will have a mixture of one and two bedroom dwelling units totaling thirty-six (36) units per building. 
The one bedroom units are 801 square feet, which meets the Village’s minimum requirement of 800 square feet per 
Section V.C.2. of the Zoning Ordinance. The two bedroom units range in size from 1,140 to 1,155 square feet, which 
meets the Village’s minimum requirement of 1,000 square feet. The proposed development will have a total of 60 
one bedroom units and 84 two bedroom units. 
 

Dwelling Unit Breakdown (Per Building) 
• First Floor: 10 (4 one bedroom, 6 two bedroom) 
• Second Floor: 10 (4 one bedroom, 6 two bedroom) 
• Third Floor: 10 (4 one bedroom, 6 two bedroom) 
• Fourth Floor: 6 (3 one bedroom, 3 two bedroom) 

 
Building Materials 
The Petitioner proposes to use a thin brick that is precast into a panel. These panels have horizontal seams rather 
than vertical seams like some commercial precast panels, so the transition from one panel to the next would be 
unnoticeable. The Petitioner provided an attachment that outlines other locations where this type of panel has been 
used on residential buildings. This material is more expensive than traditional brick but saves cost in labor. Due to 
the construction method and use of concrete, this type of construction is considered to be more sound proof and 
stronger in structural durability. 
 

 
Photo of Material Sample – Side View of Panel 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 15 of 33 

The proposed color for the residential structures is a reddish brown while the club house is a beige color. Staff notes 
that the club house should be differentiated from the residential buildings; however, the club house should 
incorporate some of the same reddish brown brick color for consistency. 
 
Open Item #6: Revise elevations to include reddish brown brick accents on the club house. 
 

  
Photo of Red/Brown Brick Material Sample Photo of Beige Brick Material Sample 

 
The Petitioner has not yet provided a material sample for the precast panels along the parking level. The elevations 
indicate that these precast panels will be stained and stamped with a stone pattern (see image below) 
 
Open Item #7: Provide material sample for the foundation of the building. 
 

 
Elevation Showing Precast Stained and Stamped Foundation Material 

 

  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 16 of 33 

SIGNAGE 
 
The Petitioner’s current plans propose two (2) freestanding signs – one positioned near the north end of the 
property and one near the south end of the property. The proposed sign matches the proposed building materials 
located along the foundation of the building. Staff provides an analysis of the proposed sign versus the Sign 
Regulations within Section IX of the Zoning Ordinance below. The proposed sign meets the applicable codes. 
 

 
 
 

 Proposed Allowed by Code Difference 
Number of Signs 2 1 per entrance; 

3 (north, club house, and south entrances) 
-1 

Maximum Sign Face Area 5.33 SF each 5 SF per acre; max of 30 SF; 
7.65 x 5 = 38.25 SF, except 30 SF max 

-24.67 

Maximum Height 2’8” 5’ -2’4” 
 
  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 17 of 33 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
The following attachments correspond to the proposed project and were included in the Plan Commission Meeting 
Packet for October 19, 2017:  
 

1. Revised Applications 
2. Revised Plans 
3. Market Study Summary by Tracy Cross & Associates, Inc. 
4. Summary Planning Analysis by Tracy Cross & Associates, Inc. 
5. Public Comments Response by Tracy Cross & Associates, Inc. 
6. Plan Commission Minutes from 4/15/1999, 8/5/1999, and 9/16/1999, 5/18/2017, 6/1/2017, 6/28/2017 
7. Plan Commission Staff Reports from 5/18/2017, 6/1/2017, and 6/28/2017 
8. Village Board Minutes from 9/7/1999, 9/21/1999, 2/15/2000, 7/11/2017 
9. Revised Brookside Glen PUD Timeline 
10. Density Memo by Paula Wallrich 
11. Traffic Memo by Chris King 

 
The following attachments correspond to the proposed project and are included in the Plan Commission 
Meeting Packet for November 2, 2017:  
 

1. Application 
2. Plans 
3. New Articles 

a. “More U.S. Households are Renting than at Any Point in 50 Years” (Pew Research Center) 
b. “After Big Lull, Suburban Apartment Construction has Boomed Since 2013” (Daily Herald) 
c. “Renters are Rocking the Suburbs” (U.S. News) 
d. “Perks of Renting in the Suburbs” (Zillow) 

 
 
 
 
  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 18 of 33 

PLAN COMMISSION WORKSHOP 
 
Summary of the October 19, 2017 Plan Commission Workshop: 

• Discussed open items: 
1. Consider an Exception for the front yard setback to allow the structures to be set back about 18’ to 27’ 

from the east property line. 
 Staff noted that the proposed setbacks meet the intent of both the R-6 minimum setback 

and the UD-1 maximum setback requirement. 
 

2. Consider an Exception for the building height to allow the structures at a maximum building height of 
65’. 

 Staff discussed height information for the proposed project and compared the project to the 
existing Brookside Place development. It was noted that although the proposed project is 
approximately 10’ taller than Brookside Place, the ground elevation is approximately 10’ less 
in this area thereby cancelling out the height increase.  

 Staff noted that the taller ceiling height within the proposed project is considered an amenity 
for future residents. The existing Brookside Place structures do not offer a 14’ ceiling height. 

 
3. Minor revisions are required on the Landscape Plan. 

 Staff noted a few revisions to the Landscape Plan. The Petitioner indicated that they will 
comply with the landscape requirements.  

 Staff recommends the approval of the Landscape Plan be a condition of Site Plan Approval. 
The Village’s Landscape Architect and Staff can approve the final Landscape Plan at building 
permit stage. 

 
4. Information is needed about the plans for security and management of the property.   

 The Petitioner provided research about security and management for similar multi-family 
developments in the region. The Petitioner plans to provide security and management 
services that are on par with the other developments.  

 Residents will access their building and the club house with a key card. The key cards will not 
work for the other residential buildings. 

 Security cameras will be provided at entrances and exits to the buildings. 
 The Petitioner will provide on-site property management according to the following 

schedule: 
• Monday – Friday: 9:00am – 5:00pm 
• Saturday: 10:00am – 5:00pm 
• Sunday: 12:00pm – 5:00pm 

 The Petitioner will provide 24/7 on-call property management. 
 

5. Lighting is required near all entrances/exits to the structures. The Petitioner must submit plans showing 
adequate lighting provided by fixtures complimentary to the architectural style of the structures.  

 The Petitioner submitted a revised Photometric Plan that includes lighting attached to the 
building by entrances/exits.  

 The Petitioner provided a cut sheet of the wall sconces. 
 

6. Revise elevations to include reddish brown brick accents on the club house. 
 The Petitioner provided updated plans that show the club house in the same brick color as 

the residential structures. 
 

 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 19 of 33 

 
7. Provide material sample for the foundation of the building. 

 The Petitioner provided a material sample for the 
foundation of the building (see photo at right). 

 The Petitioner’s plans indicate more color variety in 
the foundation material than provided in the 
sample. 

 The Plan Commission requested that the Petitioner 
use a foundation material with more color variety. A 
new sample must be provided. 

 The Petitioner provided the photo below to show the new material sample. 
 

 
 

 
• Questions from the Plan Commission and Citizens: 

1. The Staff Report does not mention that these are apartments but the Petitioner’s presentation mentions 
leasing the units. Please clarify the type of housing. 

 The Petitioner stated that they intend for this multi-family project to be apartments. 
 

2. Does the project meet the Floor Area Ratio (FAR) requirements? 
 Background on Floor Area Ratio (FAR): 

There are many regulations in a zoning ordinance that are used to influence a desired site 
plan and building design.  Regulations for a zoning lot (lot area, depth, width) are imposed as 
a means to regulate building separation, scale, and density. There are also bulk regulations 
(front, side and rear yard setbacks, building height and floor area ratio) that impact building 
placement and intensity of use. Building setback and building height regulations are the 
more traditional methods that communities use to help provide appropriate buffers 
between uses and ensure a certain scale to a project. Floor Area Ratio (FAR) regulations are 
supplementary to the traditional bulk regulations and help to regulate the volume, intensity 
and proportion of the building in relation to the lot. Regulations for lot coverage, open space 
and percent impervious are also used to impact site design and together with the FAR 
requirements help to protect the balance between open space and building coverage.   
 
Most Zoning Ordinances use a combination of all of these regulations, along with landscape 
requirements and building codes to ensure a certain quality of development.  These 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 20 of 33 

regulations are enforced for projects that are developed under straight zoning requirements.  
In a Planned Unit Development (PUD), there is an inherent flexibility that encourages a more 
imaginative and unified design. The proposed development is requesting an exception to the 
front yard setback requirements, maximum building height, and the maximum FAR as 
discussed below.  It is important to evaluate these exceptions in context of the whole 
development and seek a balance between aspects of the development that exceed or meet 
requirements against where exceptions are requested. Staff recommends these be 
considered against the amount of open space that is provided (3.79 ac where .76 ac is 
required) and lot coverage (1.76 ac is proposed and up to 2.68 ac is allowed).   
 
Floor Area Ratio (FAR) is calculated by dividing the gross floor area by the net site area. The 
gross floor area is the sum of the gross horizontal areas of all floors including accessory 
buildings.  Our ordinance does not specifically address including enclosed parking areas in 
the calculation for FAR; however, they traditionally are not included in gross floor area 
calculations (see the American Planning Association’s information about FAR at  
https://www.planning.org/pas/reports/report111.htm for a comprehensive explanation of 
FAR).  As stated above a FAR calculation is used to supplement traditional regulations in an 
attempt to control intensity and volume of a building.  Parking areas, whether enclosed or 
not, are typically not included in the overall gross floor area calculations.  
 
Multi-family developments in the R-6 Zoning District require a maximum FAR of 0.6.  The 
proposed project exceeds this limit with a 0.656 FAR (exceeding code by 18,646 SF). It is 
important to note that the architect included the area assigned for enclosed bike parking, 
cabanas, restrooms for the pool area, and all the stairwells, elevator shafts and mechanical 
rooms located on the parking level within the floor area calculation.  The total for these areas 
is 12,414.36 SF. Underground parking is considered a luxury amenity for the development as 
is the recreation areas; they are not a requirement.  Removing this square footage from the 
calculation results in a FAR of 0.618 (0.6 when rounded down).  However, since the code is 
not clear on how to treat the underground parking, the Commission may wish to include the 
FAR calculation as an exception.  
  
It is important to note that the FAR for a nine (9) building proposal on this parcel would 
significantly exceed FAR limitations (see information below). More importantly, the existing 
condominium development (Brookside Place) also exceeds FAR requirements. In 
comparison, the proposed four (4) building proposal more closely aligns with the intent of 
the FAR than the existing Brookside Place development or the alternate proposal of nine (9) 
buildings. 

 
Subject Site Gross Floor Area* (SF) Land Area (SF) Floor Area Ratio 

 4 Building Plan (Current) 218,440.33 332,991 0.65599 
9 Building Plan 301,221.18 332,991 0.90459 

* not including interior parking 

 
Brookside Place Gross Floor Area* (SF) Land Area (SF) Floor Area Ratio 

Phase I 234,283.14 268,319 0.87315 
Phase II 66,938.04 74,639 0.89682 
Phase III 133,876.08 141,744 0.94449 

Phase I, II, & III 435,097.26 484,702 0.89756 
* not including interior parking 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 21 of 33 

 
3. Should there also be a deviation from Ordinance 2000-O-006 for constructing “multi-family” instead of 

“condominiums”? 
 Condominiums are considered multi-family units; however, Ordinance 2000-O-006 

references “condominiums” throughout the ordinance. The Petitioner has clarified that they 
are constructing apartments for rent not condominiums. 

 
4. What are the projected property taxes? 

 The Petitioner provided follow up information stating the projected property taxes are 
$350,000. 

 
5. What is the projected cost for the development? 

 The Petitioner provided follow up information stating the proposed cost for the development 
is $30 million. 

 
6. Where will construction traffic go? 

 The Village Engineer will determine the appropriate route for construction traffic. It is 
anticipated that this will be via Magnuson Lane at 191st Street.  

 
7. Is there more information about the developer? 

 The Petitioner provided follow up information stating they will present more information 
about the developer at the Public Hearing. 

 The Petitioner also provided the following websites with more information about the 
developer: 

• www.jmichaelbuilders.com 
• www.kjmconstructionco.com  

 
8. What assurances does the Village have that the developer will complete the project? 

 The Village currently requires a Letter of Credit for public improvements. 
 The Village currently requires all contractors to be licensed and bonded prior to releasing a 

building permit.  
 

9. Can the Petitioner add more electric car charging stations? 
 The Petitioner provided follow up information stating that if they see a demand in the future 

they will provide additional electric car charging stations. The Petitioner will not increase the 
number of charging stations at this time. 

 
10. How will fumes within the parking garage be mitigated? 

 The Petitioner provided follow up information stating the enclosed parking garage will be 
designed in accordance with the Village’s mechanical code. The garage will be designed with 
intake louvers and exhaust fans, which will be automatically turned on when the carbon 
monoxide (CO2) reaches a designated level. When the CO2 levels set by code reach this level, 
the fresh air intake louvers will open and the exhaust fan turns on, removing the CO2 and 
drawing in fresh make-up air. The fans will remain on until the CO2 level are lowered until 
acceptable levels and then the louvers will close and the fan will turn off.  This will be similar 
to what already exists at the Brookside Place buildings. 

 
11. Who is supposed to maintain the pond north of the Petitioner’s property? 
 The pond property is not owned by the Petitioner. Staff has met with the responsible party and they are 

aware of the requirement to bring the pond up to code.  

http://www.jmichaelbuilders.com/
http://www.kjmconstructionco.com/


The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 22 of 33 

STANDARDS AND CRITERIA FOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Section VII.C. of the Zoning Ordinance provides standards and criteria for Planned Unit Developments. Staff 
provided draft responses for each of these standards below in bullet points for the Plan Commission’s 
consideration. The Plan Commission may add or delete from these findings based on testimony and discussion 
resulting from Public Hearing testimony. 
 
GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS: 
 

a. The site of the proposed Planned Unit Development is not less than five (5) acres in area, is under single 
ownership and/or unified control, and is suitable to be planned and developed, or redeveloped, as a unit 
and in a manner consistent with the purpose and intent of this Ordinance and with the Comprehensive Plan 
of the Village; 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development is over 800 acres. The subject site is 7.65 acres and is 
under single ownership.  

• The Brookside Glen PUD called for condos/apartments in this area according to Exhibit C of 
Resolution 90-R-002. 

 
Excerpt from Exhibit C of 90-R-002 with “Parcel C” Highlighted 

 
• The Village’s Comprehensive Plan notes this site as residential. 

 
Excerpt from the Village’s Land Use Plan from the Comprehensive Plan (Yellow = Residential) 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 23 of 33 

b. The Planned Unit Development will not substantially injure, or damage the use, value, and enjoyment of the 
surrounding property, nor hinder or prevent the development of surrounding property in accordance with 
the Land Use Plan of the Village; 

• The proposed development does not increase the density or total unit count approved in Ordinance 
2000-O-006. 

• The subject site is vacant land that was planned for condo/apartments according to Exhibit C of 
Resolution 90-R-002 (see graphic in General Provision “a” on the previous page).  

• Single-family dwellings (attached and detached) have already been developed in the vicinity. 
• The Petitioner has made revisions to their plans in response to concerns from Staff, the Plan 

Commission, and citizens. Revisions include adding more landscaping to buffer between the existing 
townhomes, relocating the dog park, and reconfiguring the land banked parking so it would not be 
facing toward the existing townhomes. The terraces are now located between the residential 
buildings so they are no longer near the townhomes as previously shown on prior plans. 

• Vacant land that was planned for commercial uses (Community Shopping and Office/Restricted 
Industrial) exists to the east of the subject parcel. The proposed development would allow for more 
people to live in this area since 144 dwelling units would be added, which may spur more 
development to occur on vacant parcels in the area near 191st Street and 80th Avenue.  

• The Petitioner is not requesting an increase from the number of dwelling units that were approved 
for the condo/apartment portion of the PUD. 

 
c. The uses permitted in the development are necessary or desirable and that the need for such uses has been 

clearly demonstrated; 
• The proposed use (144 dwelling units) is consistent with approvals of formerly adopted documents 

90-R-002 and 2000-O-006. 
• The Petitioner has provided a Market Study (prepared by Tracy Cross & Associates) addressing the 

viability of the proposed development.  
 

d. The proposed development will not impose an undue burden on public facilities and services, such as sewer 
and water systems, police, and fire protection; 

• The proposed development does not increase the density or total unit count approved in Ordinance 
2000-O-006. 

• The public improvements and services needed for the Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development 
were master planned in the early 1990s when the development was initially approved.  

• The remaining public improvements near the site (completion of Magnuson Lane to 191st Street, 
street lighting, street trees, public sidewalk, stormwater, etc.) must be completed before the 
proposed development can be occupied. 

 
e. The proposed development can be substantially completed within the period of time specified in the 

schedule of development submitted by the developer; 
• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development has been underway since 1990 and still has vacant 

parcels to be developed.  
• The project is expected to be completed in one phase. 
• All residential amenities are to be completed prior to issuance of final Certificate of Occupancy.  

 
f. The street system serving the Planned Unit Development is adequate to carry the traffic that will be imposed 

upon the streets by the proposed development, and that the streets and driveways on the site of the 
Planned Unit Development will be adequate to serve the residents or occupants of the proposed 
development; 

• The proposed development does not increase the density or total unit count approved in Ordinance 
2000-O-006. 

• The public streets needed for the Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development were master planned 
in the early 1990s when the development was initially approved.  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 24 of 33 

• The proposed development will require the completion of Magnuson Lane and a new connection 
with 191st Street. 

• The proposed development will have two major access points – the new intersection of Magnuson 
Lane and 191st Street and the existing intersection of Greenway Boulevard and 80th Avenue. 

• The access points will be shared with the 52 existing townhome units on Brushwood Lane and 
Enclave Lane and any future development in the southwest corner of 191st Street and 80th Avenue. 

 
g. When a Planned Unit Development proposes the use of private streets, common driveways, private 

recreation facilities, or common open space, the developer shall provide and submit, as part of the 
application, the method and arrangement whereby these private facilities shall be operated and maintained; 

• The proposed development includes private amenities for the occupants, private parking areas and 
drive aisles, and common open space. 

• The Petitioner will provide property management services 24/7 with a management office on-site 
with regular hours. 

 
h. The general development plan shall contain such proposed covenants, easements, and other provisions 

relating to the bulk, location, and density of residential buildings, non-residential uses and structures, and 
public facilities as are necessary for the welfare of the Planned Unit Development and the Village.  All such 
covenants shall specifically provide for enforcement by the Village of Tinley Park in addition to the 
landowners within the development; 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development, as amended, noted general development plans for 
the PUD. 

• Certain conditions are placed on the Special Use Permit approval regulating the operation of the 
proposed development. 

 
i. The developer shall provide and record easements and covenants, and shall make such other arrangements 

as furnishing a performance bond, escrow deposit, or other financial guarantees as may be reasonably be 
required to assure performance in accordance with the development plan and to protect the public interest 
in the event of abandonment of said plan before completion; and 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development included certain easements, covenants, and financial 
guarantees. 

• Appropriate financial securities will be provided as required by Village ordinance. 
 

j. Any exceptions or modifications of the zoning, subdivision, or other regulations that would otherwise be 
applicable to the site are warranted by the design of the proposed development plan, and the amenities 
incorporated in it, are consistent with the general interest of the public. 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development included exceptions from the Zoning Ordinance. In 
the specific case of the areas planned for condo/apartments, the exceptions included the allowable 
density and the height of the structures. 

• The Petitioner requests an exception from the allowable height of the structures, an exception from 
the required front yard setback, and an exception for the floor area ratio.  

 
  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 25 of 33 

RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS:   
(It is important to note that these standards are customarily applied for the adoption of a new PUD, not a Substantial 
Deviation, and therefore some have limited applicability) 
 

a. The density of any Residential Planned Unit Development shall not exceed the density allowed in the district 
in which the Planned Unit Development is located, except the Plan Commission may recommend, and the 
Village Board may grant, an increase in the density up to but not more than twenty (20) percent, provided 
the proposed development provides additional open space and amenities to compensate for the increased 
density.  The Plan Commission, in determining the reasonableness of a proposed increase in the number of 
dwelling units per acre, shall take into consideration: 
(1) The physical characteristics of the site that may make increased densities appropriate in the particular 

location; 
(2) The amount, location, and proposed use of common open space;  
(3) The location, design, and type of dwelling units proposed; and  
(4) The provision of unique design features such as golf courses, lakes, swimming pools, underground 

parking, and other similar features within the Planned Unit Development, which require unusually high 
development costs and which achieve an especially attractive and stable development.  Land within the 
Planned Unit Development, which is used for open space, may be included as gross area for calculations 
of density. 
• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development approved a certain allowable density (144 dwelling 

units). 
• The condo/apartment portion of the PUD was approved for 12 du/acre (258 units / 21.5 acres) per 

Resolution 90-R-002 and then amended in Ordinance 2000-O-006 to allow for 13 du/acre (352 units / 
27 acres).  Staff notes that it is uncertain whether this is net or gross density, but assumes it is gross 
density since it is consistent with the gross density requirements of R-5 and R-6 Zoning Districts. 

• The existing Brookside Place condominiums (which were constructed in three phases) have an 
average density of 18.7 du/acre. This is a net density calculation; without information regarding what 
area was considered part of the original gross density calculation a comparison is not possible. 

• The proposed development has a density of 18.8 du/acre and includes the remaining 144 units that 
were approved in 2000 (352 total units approved – 208 units constructed in Brookside Place = 144 
approved units remaining). This is a net density calculation; without information regarding what area 
was considered part of the original gross density calculation a comparison is not possible. 

• The Petitioner is not requesting an increase from the number of dwelling units that were approved 
for the condo/apartment portion of the PUD. 

• The Petitioner is providing over four (4) acres of open space. 
 

b. When a Planned Unit Development is proposed in a single-family residential zone, seventy (70) percent of all 
dwelling units proposed within the zone shall be intended for single-family occupancy.  For the purpose of 
this Section, a townhouse shall be considered as a single-family dwelling; 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development consists of a majority of single-family dwellings. The 
only existing multi-family dwellings are the Brookside Place condominiums. Other planned areas 
included Community Shopping, Office/Restricted Industrial, and parks. 

• The Petitioner is not requesting an increase from the number of dwelling units that were approved 
for the condo/apartment portion of the PUD. 

 
c. No minimum lot area is required for individual buildings, except that individual lots for single-family 

detached dwellings, which may be provided within the overall Planned Unit Development, shall not be less 
than six thousand five hundred (6,500) square feet in area and single-family attached and semi-detached 
dwelling units not less than three thousand (3,000) square feet of lot area; 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development would have accounted for this provision. 
• This provision does not state requirements for multi-family structures. 

 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 26 of 33 

d. Not more than six (6) dwelling units shall be permitted in a single-family attached building.  “Single-Family 
Attached Building” is defined as a building containing two or more single-family attached dwelling units 
joined at one or more points by one or more party walls or common facilities not including the walls of an 
enclosed courtyard or similar area; 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development would have accounted for this provision. 
• This provision does not state requirements for multi-family structures. 

 
e. When single-family attached dwellings are proposed within a Residential Planned Unit Development, the 

front or rear facade of a dwelling unit shall not be less than sixty (60) feet from the front or rear facade of 
another dwelling unit.  The unattached side face of a single-family attached building shall not be less than 
twenty (20) feet from the side face of another such building and not less than forty (40) feet from the front 
or rear face of another such building or unit; 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development would have accounted for this provision. 
• This provision does not state requirements for multi-family structures. 

 
f. No dwelling unit shall be situated so as to face the rear of another dwelling unit unless adequate 

landscaping is provided to effectively create a visual separation; 
• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development would have accounted for this provision. 
• The proposed development does not situate dwelling units in a manner that faces the front of a 

dwelling unit toward the rear of another dwelling unit. Landscape buffering and distance between 
the proposed development and existing residential structures has been provided. 

 
g. Non-residential or local business-type uses (limited to those permitted in the B-1 Neighborhood Shopping 

District) may be included as part of a Residential Planned Unit Development when the Plan Commission 
finds that: 
(1) Such business uses are beneficial to the overall Residential Planned Unit Development and will not be 

injurious to adjacent or neighboring properties;  
(2) Such uses are not available within reasonable proximity of the subject area;  
(3) Are gauged primarily for the service and convenience of the residents of the subject area; and 
(4) Are designed as a unit of limited size and made an integral part of the proposed    Residential Planned 

Unit Development. 
• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development would have accounted for this provision. 
• This provision does not state requirements for multi-family structures. 

 
h. Combination of business and multiple-family residential uses in one structure may be permitted in a 

structure provided that: 
(1) The business uses are limited to personal services and convenience type uses  intended solely for the 

purpose of serving those residing in the multiple-family complex; and 
(2) No businesses are permitted on the same floor or above a floor used for residential purposes. 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development did not call for any mixed-use structures. 
• The proposed development does not include commercial uses under the residential dwellings. 
 

i. Ten (10) percent of the gross land area of a Planned Unit Development, or a minimum of seven hundred 
fifty (750) square feet per dwelling unit, whichever is greater, shall be developed for recreational open 
space; except that in multiple-family areas, the minimum square feet per dwelling unit shall be computed 
on the basis of two hundred (200) square feet for each efficiency and one (1) bedroom unit, three hundred 
fifty (350) square feet for each two (2) bedroom units, and five hundred fifty (550) square feet for each three 
(3) or more bedroom units.  When private common open space is provided within a Planned Unit 
Development, such open space shall not be computed as part of the required minimum lot area, or any 
required yard, or any other structure.  Open spaces proposed for either dedication to the public or common 
ownership by the residents of the Residential Planned Unit Development shall be retained as open space for 
park and recreational use for the life of the Planned Unit Development.  A variety of open space and 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 27 of 33 

recreational areas is encouraged, including children’s informal play in close proximity to individual dwelling 
units according to the concentration of dwellings, formal parks, picnic areas, playgrounds, areas of formal 
recreational activities such as tennis, swimming, golf, etc.; 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development master planned over 122 acres of parks and 
recreation space according to Exhibit C of Resolution 90-R-002. 

• There are 60 one bedroom units and 84 two bedroom units in the proposed plan. Per the standards 
above, the required open space for the proposed development would be 41,400 square feet (0.95 
acres). The Petitioner is providing over four (4) acres of open space, which is three (3) acres more 
than this requirement. 

 
j. Each Residential Planned Unit Development shall provide for the visual and acoustical privacy of each 

dwelling unit.  Fences, walks, and landscaping shall be provided for the protection and aesthetic 
enhancement of property and the privacy of its occupants, screening of objectionable views, or uses and 
reduction of noise;  

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development master planned the layout of the development. 
• The Petitioner’s plans indicate landscaping throughout the site to buffer from other parcels; the 

landscape plan will meet the intent of the Landscape Ordinance. Sidewalks are also shown on the 
plans. The west side of the buildings will face the ComEd right-of-way. 

 
k. The pedestrian circulation system and its related walkways shall be insulated as completely as possible from 

the street system in order to provide separation of pedestrian and vehicular movements.  This shall include, 
when deemed to be necessary by the Plan Commission, pedestrian underpasses or overpasses in the 
vicinity of schools, playgrounds, local shopping areas, and other neighborhood uses which generate a 
considerable amount of pedestrian traffic; 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development master planned the pedestrian layout of the 
development. 

• The Petitioner’s plans indicate sidewalks that will link with the existing sidewalks and provide access 
to the nearby bike trails. 

 
l. At least two (2) off-street parking spaces shall be provided for each dwelling unit, except as may be 

otherwise required.  Such parking shall be provided convenient to all dwelling units (not more than three 
hundred (300) feet from the dwelling unit as measured along the shortest paved route).  Driveways, parking 
areas, walks, and steps shall be well paved, maintained, and lighted for night use.  Screening of parking and 
service areas shall be encouraged through ample use of trees, shrubs, hedges, and screening walls; 

• The Petitioner’s plans indicate 171 covered parking spaces and 125 outdoor parking spaces. 
Additionally, 64 parking spaces are land banked for potential parking needs. The parking ratio is 2.5 
spaces per dwelling unit for a total requirement of 360 spaces – all of which have been provided on 
the plans. 

 
m. Access and circulation shall adequately provide for firefighting equipment, delivery trucks, furniture moving 

vans, refuse collection, and snow removal; 
• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development master planned the layout of the development. 
• The Petitioner’s plans meet the requirements of the Fire Department and drive aisles allow for other 

vehicles to safely traverse the site.  
• Trash enclosures are located in areas that are accessible for trash collection. 

 
n. All Residential Planned Unit Developments shall provide for underground installation of utilities, including 

telephone and power, in both public and private rights-of-way.  Provision shall be made for acceptable 
design and construction of storm sewer facilities, including water retention areas, grading, gutters, piping, 
and treatment of turf to handle stormwater, prevent erosion, and formation of dust; 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development master planned the layout of the development. 
• The proposed development will comply with these provisions. 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 28 of 33 

 
o. All buildings within a Residential Planned Unit Development shall be set back not less than twenty-five (25) 

feet from a public dedicated street, and along the exterior boundaries not adjoining a street, there shall be a 
minimum setback of forty (40) feet plus one (1) foot for each additional foot that the building increases in 
height over thirty-five (35) feet; 

• In 2013, the Village adopted an overlay district for certain areas of the Village that called for lesser 
front yard setbacks (20’ maximum front yard setback). The Petitioner designed the proposed 
development to meet the intent of the overlay district but still respect the character of the existing 
development. The front yard setbacks of the residential buildings range from about 18’ to 27’.  

 
p. A twenty (20) foot buffer including, but not limited to, solid fences, masonry walls, or plant materials, shall 

be provided so as to constitute the visual screening of all parking areas and outdoor activity areas from 
adjacent property or rights-of-way at ground level.  Where a buffer already exists on the adjacent property 
line, or where parking areas or similar activity areas adjoin each other on adjacent properties, the buffer 
requirements may be waived by the Plan Commission; and 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development master planned the layout of the development. 
• The proposed plans indicate a landscape buffer from adjacent rights-of-way, parking areas, and 

activity areas. 
 

q. When the development is to be constructed in stages or units, a sequence of development schedules shall 
be provided showing the order of construction of each principal functional element of such stages or units, 
the approximate completion date for each stage or unit, and a cost estimate for all improvements within 
each stage or unit. 

• The Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development has been constructed in many phases and units. 
• The Petitioner intends to construct the proposed development in a single phase. 

 
 
  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 29 of 33 

STANDARDS FOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL 
 
Section III.T.2. of the Zoning Ordinance requires that Planning Staff must find that the conditions listed below must 
be met. Staff prepared draft responses for these conditions below in bullet points for the Plan Commission’s 
consideration. 
 

a. That the proposed Use is a Permitted Use in the district in which the property is located. 
• The proposed use, multi-family residential, is a permitted use in the R-6 Zoning District and was 

contemplated in the original PUD and Substantial Deviation (2000).  
 

b. That the proposed arrangement of buildings, off-street parking, access, lighting, landscaping, and 
drainage is compatible with adjacent land uses.   
• The proposed site plan increases the amount of green space and distance from existing residential 

structures. 
• Off-street parking meets the required setback and is screened from public view. 
• Lighting meets Village photometric requirements. 

 
c. That the vehicular ingress and egress to and from the site and circulation within the site provides for 

safe, efficient, and convenient movement of traffic, not only within the site but on adjacent roadways as 
well. 
• The existing street configuration was approved with the original PUD (90-R-002). Ordinance 2000-O-

006 (the Substantial Deviation from the PUD) approved 144 dwelling units on the subject parcel. 
 

d. That the Site Plan provides for the safe movement of pedestrians within the site.  
• Sidewalks are provided along the right-of-way as well as throughout the site to connect parking 

areas with residential structure and amenity areas. 
 

e. That there is a sufficient mixture of grass, trees, and shrubs within the interior and perimeter (including 
public right-of-way) of the site so that the proposed development will be in harmony with adjacent land 
uses and will provide a pleasing appearance to the public; any part of the Site Plan area not used for 
buildings, structures, parking, or access-ways shall be landscaped with a mixture of grass, trees, and 
shrubs. 
• Landscaping has been provided consistent with the intent of Village Code; additional landscaping 

has been provided in those areas adjacent to existing residential areas. 
 

f. That all outdoor trash storage areas are adequately screened. 
• Outdoor trash areas are screened. The enclosures are constructed with materials that match the 

residential structures. 

 
 
  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 30 of 33 

STANDARDS FOR A SPECIAL USE 
 
Section X.J.5. of the Zoning Ordinance lists standards that need to be considered by the Plan Commission. The Plan 
Commission is encouraged to consider these standards (listed below) when analyzing a Special Use request. Staff 
provided draft Findings in the Staff Report below in bullet points for the Plan Commission’s consideration. 

 
X.J.5. Standards: No Special Use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission unless said Commission shall find: 
 

a. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the Special Use will not be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 
• The proposed use is consistent with the use and density of the approved PUD (and Substantial 

Deviation) with 144 multi-family units, however the 144 units are provided in four (4) residential 
structures instead of nine (9) as approved within Ordinance 2000-O-006.  

• The Substantial Deviation would allow the decrease from nine (9) buildings to four (4) residential 
buildings connected by semi-underground parking. 

 
b. That the Special Use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 
the neighborhood; 
• The proposed use increases the amount of green space and distance from existing residential uses 

from previously approved site plans.  
• As part of the proposed development, right-of-way improvements for Magnuson Lane will be 

completed including its intersection with 191st Street, thereby improving circulation and access for 
existing residential dwellings.  

• Landscape buffers have been designed to screen off-street parking areas.   
• The proposed Site Plan is consistent with the intent of the Urban Design Overlay District (UD-1) 

which prioritizes the architecture of the project and minimizes the appearance of parking areas. 
 

c. That the establishment of the Special Use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; 
• The proposed development is consistent with land use and density approvals in the original PUD 

and Ordinance 2000-O-006. 
• The adjacent vacant property is planned for commercial uses; the addition of residential units may 

provide incentive for development of these parcels to occur. 
 

d. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or other necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided; 
• Existing road and utility infrastructure is in place. Right-of-way improvements including sidewalks will 

be completed in conjunction with the proposed development. 
 

e. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets; and 
• The density has not changed from original approvals within Ordinance 2000-O-006.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 31 of 33 

f. That the Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in 
which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the Village Board 
pursuant to the recommendation of the Plan Commission.  The Village Board shall impose such 
conditions and restrictions upon the premises benefited by a Special Use Permit as may be necessary to 
ensure compliance with the above standards, to reduce or minimize the effect of such permit upon 
other properties in the neighborhood, and to better carry out the general intent of this Ordinance.  
Failure to comply with such conditions or restrictions shall constitute a violation of this Ordinance. 
• Proposed exceptions include: Building height, building setback and floor area ratio. Staff 

recommended various conditions for the approval. 
 

g. The extent to which the Special Use contributes directly or indirectly to the economic development of 
the community as a whole. 
• The subject property has remained vacant since the 1990 adoption of the PUD.  The proposed 

development will increase property tax revenue and has potential to increase the sales tax revenue 
of commercial uses in the Village. 

 
 
 



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 32 of 33 

MOTION TO CONSIDER 
 
If the Plan Commission wishes to take action, the following motion is in the appropriate form: 
 
“… make a motion to grant the Petitioner, Andrea Crowley of Griffin & Gallagher, LLC on behalf of Karli Mayher and 
KJM-Vandenberg Brookside Joint Venture, Site Plan Approval, in accordance with plans as noted in the List of 
Submitted Plans within the Staff Report and attached to the Plan Commission Meeting Packet, to develop a one 
hundred forty-four (144) unit multi-family residential project within four (4) residential structures connected by 
semi-underground parking. The proposed plans include various private residential amenities such as a 5,320± 
square foot club house, outdoor terraces, outdoor pool and cabanas, electric car charging stations, a dog park, 
fitness center, fire pits, and landscaping. 
 
The Plan Commission also moves to recommend that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Andrea Crowley of 
Griffin & Gallagher, LLC on behalf of Karli Mayher and KJM-Vandenberg Brookside Joint Venture, a Special Use 
Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the Brookside Glen Planned Unit Development (within Ordinance 2000-O-
006) to develop a one hundred forty-four (144) unit multi-family residential project within four (4) residential 
structures connected by semi-underground parking.  
 
Ordinance 2000-O-006 allows one hundred forty-four (144) dwelling units within nine (9) buildings. The proposed 
Substantial Deviation will reduce the number of residential structures from nine (9) to four (4). The club house will 
be located between the residential structures above the semi-underground parking garage. The subject property is 
generally located west of Magnuson Lane and John Michael Drive in the southwest corner of 191st Street and 
Magnuson Lane. The parcel identification numbers of the lots are 19-09-11-200-015-0000 and 19-09-11-200-013-
0000. The Plan Commission also adopts the Standards for a Planned Unit Development, Standards for Site Plan 
Approval, and Findings of Fact for a Special Use Permit drafted in the Staff Report and discussed at this meeting.” 
 
…The project includes the following exceptions: 

1. An exception to the Village requirement for the front yard setback to allow the residential structures to be 
set back about 18’ to 27’; 
 

2. A nine foot (9’) exception to the maximum building height requirement within Ordinance 2000-O-006 to 
allow the structures at a building height of 65’ where 56’ is the maximum height allowed; and 
 

3. An exception of 0.056 to the Village requirement for floor area ratio (FAR) to allow a FAR of 0.656 where 0.6 is 
the maximum FAR allowed. 

 
…The Plan Commission recommends the following conditions: 
 

1. That the Final Landscape Plan must be approved by the Village’s Landscape Architect and Village Staff prior 
to release of the building permit; 
 

2. That the Petitioner provides amenities in accordance with the plans; 
 

3. All proposed residential amenities must be completed prior to issuance of final Certificate of Occupancy; 
 

4. The public improvements (sidewalk, lighting, street trees, and intersection improvements) along Magnuson 
Lane toward 191st Street must be completed prior to issuance of the final Certificate of Occupancy; and 
 

5. (any other conditions that the Plan Commission wishes to recommend) 
  



The Residence of Brookside Glen – SWC of 191st Street & Magnuson Lane 
 

Page 33 of 33 

LIST OF REVIEWED PLANS 
 
 

Submitted Sheet Name 
Prepared 

By 
Date On 

Sheet 
A100 Coversheet ASL 09/26/2017 
A101 Schematic Site Plan ASL 09/26/2017 

A101A Site Plan ASL 09/26/2017 
A102 Land Banked Parking Plan ASL 09/26/2017 
A103 Schematic Site Plan – Distance Study ASL 09/26/2017 
A104 Ground Signage ASL 09/26/2017 
A105 Refuse Enclosure Details ASL 09/26/2017 
A106 Turn Radius ASL 09/26/2017 
A107 Building Elevation ASL 09/26/2017 
A108 Building Elevations ASL 09/26/2017 
A109 Building Elevation        ASL 09/26/2017 
A110 Typical Garage Level ASL 09/26/2017 
A111 Typical Residential Floor ASL 09/26/2017 
A112 Top Floor Plan ASL 09/26/2017 
A113 Club House Rendering ASL 09/26/2017 
A114 Club House Elevations ASL 09/26/2017 
A115 Club House Elevations ASL 09/26/2017 
A116 Club House Lower Level ASL 09/26/2017 
A117 2nd Floor Club House ASL 09/26/2017 
A118 Photometrics ASL 09/26/2017 
A119 Lighting Cut Sheets ASL 09/26/2017 

A119A Light Cut Sheets Cont. ASl 09/26/2017 
A120 Images of Amenities ASL 09/26/2017 
A121 Railing Detail Precast Detail ASL 09/26/2017 
A122 Rendering ASL 09/26/2017 

A122A Unnamed ASL 09/26/2017 
A123 Comparison ASL 09/26/2017 
A124 Overall Garage Plan ASL 09/26/2017 
A125 Prelim Grading ASL 09/26/2017 
L-1 Landscape Plan ASL 09/26/2017 

 Rendering ASL 09/26/2017 
 Rendering ASL 09/26/2017 
 Rendering ASL 09/26/2017 
 Rendering ASL 09/26/2017 
 Rendering ASL 09/26/2017 

 









   

   

                

            

     

  
              

             

             

              

              

                 

             

               

               

            

             

             

                

              

               

                  

              

                 

            

               

                  

              

                

       

               

                

               

              

               

              

                 

             







    

               

            

              

                 

         

               

               

                  

               

          



     

               

              

                 

               

               

              

                   

            

     

                

              

              

              

                   

 

               

           

              

               

                

                

                 

           

               

   

                

              

        

                 

         



               

             

                  

             

                 

                 

           

              

               

               

       

                

                  

                

               

               

      



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
1
:4

1
 P

M

A100

Coversheet

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

SAS

Checker

The Proposed 

Residence of Brookside Glen

Developer:

KJM Development

Architect:

Architectural Studio, Ltd

Developer:

14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854
Email: 
scott.s@archstudioltd.net
www.archstudioltd.net

Landscape Architect:

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street, 
Suite 135
Tel: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
Email: sgregory@eea-ltd.com 
www.eea-ltd.com

Civil Engineer:

KDC 
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Tel: 708-645-0545
Fax: 
Email: chaff@aol.com

Location Map

No. Description Date

Sheet List

Sheet
Number Sheet Name

Sheet Issue
Date

A100 Coversheet 10/01/17

A101 Schemtic Site Plan 10/01/17

A102 Land Banked Parking Plan 10/01/17

A103 Schematic Site Plan
Distance Study

10/02/17

A104 Ground Sigange 10/02/17

A105 Refuse Enclosure Details 10/02/17

A106 Turn Radius 10/02/17

A107 Building Elevation 10/01/17

A108 Building Elevations 10/01/17

A109 Buiding Elevaiton 10/01/17

A110 Typical Garage Level 10/01/17

A111 Typical Residential Floor 10/01/17

A112 Top Floor  Plan 10/01/17

A113 Rendering Club House 10/05/17

A114 Club House Elevations 10/05/17

A115 Club House Elevations 10/05/17

A116 First Floor Club House 10/02/17

A117 Second Floor Club House 10/02/17

A118 Photometrics 10/02/17

A119 Lighting Cut Sheets 10/02/17

A120 Images of Amenties 10/02/17

A121 Railing Detail Precast
Detail

10/02/17

A122 Rendering 10/03/17

A123 Comparison 10/03/17

A124 Overall Garage Plan 10/05/17

A125 Prelim Grading 10/03/17

2
3D View 11

Subject Site

1
3D View 5



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
1
:4

5
 P

M

A101

Schemtic Site Plan

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

Dog  Park



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 10/13/2017

1
0

/1
3
/2

0
1
7

 1
0

:4
5
:2

4
 A

M

A101 A

Site Plan

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

Dog Park

No. Description Date



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
1
:4

9
 P

M

A102

Land Banked Parking
Plan

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

Dog Park



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
1
:5

3
 P

M

A103

Schematic Site Plan
Distance Study

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

A104

Ground Sigange

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
1
:5

8
 P

M

A105

Refuse Enclosure
Details

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
2
:0

0
 P

M

A106

Turn Radius

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date



Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

T/ Footing
-1' - 0"

1 2 3 4 4.8 51.8

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

Finish Grade -Refer to civil 
engineering drawings for further 
information

Typical architectural 
composite roof shingles

Oversize prefinished alum. 
gutter and downspouts

Precast panels stained and stamped

Thin brick embedded 
in precast panels

Precast accent strip (stained)

42" high steel railing w/ 
wire mesh infill panels.

PTEC metal louver -
Finished to match brick 
color.

Typical architectural 
composite roof shingles

Oversize prefinished alum. 
gutter and downspouts

7
2
' -

 2
 3

/8
"

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
2
:1

9
 P

M

A107

Building Elevation

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

Front Elevation



Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

Typical architectural 
composite roof shingles

Oversize prefinished aluminum 
gutter and downpsouts

Thin brick embedded 
in precast panels.

42" high steel railing 
w/ wire mesh iinfill 
panels

Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

1
4

' -
 5

 1
3

/1
6

"

7
' 
- 

2
 2

9
/3

2
"

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

7
2
' -

 2
 5

/8
"

6
4
' -

 1
1
 3

/4
"

Mean Height

Roof Peak Typical architectural  
composite roof shingles

Oversize prefinished aluminum 
gutter and downspouts.

Thin brick 
embedded into 
precast panel

Finish grade -refer to civil engineering 
drawings for further information

Precast panel stained 
and stamped

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
2
:5

1
 P

M

A108

Building Elevations

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

Right Side Elevation

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

Left Side Elevation



Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

12344.85 1.8

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

7
2
' -

 2
 5

/8
"

Typical architectural composite roof shingles

Oversized prefinished  alum. 
gutter and downspouts.

Finished grade -refer to civil engineering 
drawings for further information

Precast accent strip (stained)

42" high steel railing w/ 
wire mesh infill panels

Thin brick embedded 
in precast panels

Precast panel stained and stamped

PTEC metal louver-
Finished to match 
brick color.

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
3
:1

7
 P

M

A109

Buiding Elevaiton

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

Street Elevation



UP

A1082

A107

A108

A109

1

1

2

1 2 3 4 4.8 51.8

31 30 29 28 27 26 25 24 23 22 21 19 18 17 16 15

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

5' - 5"

6' - 0" 7' - 5" 7' - 5" 6' - 0"

26' - 10"

Vest

638

Lobby

639

Bike Storage

640

Parking Garage

641

Stairway No. 1

642

Stairway No. 2

643

Electric Room

644

Package Room

645

Trash Room

646

Mail Area

Sprinkler Room

647

Parking Garage connection 
to adjacent building

A123

1

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
3
:1

8
 P

M

A110

Typical Garage Level

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

Parking  Level Copy 1



DW

DW

W
/D

W
/D

W
/D

W
/D

W
/D

DW

DW

UP

DW

W
/D

DW

DW

W
/D

DW

W
/D

W
/D

DW

DW

W
/D

DN

A108 1

Department Legend

Corridor

One Bedroom
One Bath 2

One Bedroom
One Bath 3

One Bedroom
One Bath 4

One Bedroom
One Bath 6

Stairway

Storage
Lockers

Trash Room

Two Bedroom
Two Bath 1

Two Bedroom
Two Bath 2

Two Bedroom
Two Bath 3

Two Bedroom
Two Bath 4

Two Bedroom
Two Bath 5

Two Bedroom
Two Bath 6

WIC

46

Stairway No. 2

7

Stairway No.1

36

1 2 3 4 4.8 51.8

174' - 9"

25' - 9 7/8" 11' - 0" 37' - 0" 26' - 0" 26' - 0" 11' - 0" 37' - 5"

37' - 5" 37' - 0" 26' - 0" 37' - 0" 37' - 5"

8
9
' -

 4
 1

/8
"

One Bedroom
One Bath

Two Bedroom
Two Bath

One Bedroom
One Bath

One Bedroom
One Bath

Two Bedroom
Two Bath

Two Bedroom
Two Bath

Two Bedroom
Two Bath

Two Bedroom
Two Bath

Two Bedroom
Two Bath

One Bedroom
One Bath

Hallway

193

Tenant Storage
Lockers

194

Tenant Storage
Lockers

195

Tenant Locker
Storage

196

Room

197

Trash Room

238

Balcony Balcony Balcony Balcony Balcony

Balcony

Balcony

Balcony

Balcony

Balcony

Area of Green Roof 

Terrace (Pavers)

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
3
:2

2
 P

M

A111

Typical Residential
Floor

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

1st Presentation



DW

W
/D

W
/D

W
/D

DW

DW DW

W
/D

DW

W
/D

DW

W
/D

A1082

A107

A108

A109

1

1

2

1 2 3 4 4.8 51.8

Stairway No 1

629

Corridor

630

Stairway No. 2

509

Elevator Equip Rm

637

Tenant Storage
Lockers

587
Tenant Storage

Lockers

585

Two Bedroom/ 
Two Bath

Two Bedroom/ 
Two Bath

Two Bedroom/ 
Two Bath

One Bedroom/ 
One Bath

One Bedroom/ 
One Bath

One Bedroom/ 
One Bath

Roof

Roof

Seating Area

Balcony

Balcony

Balcony

Balcony Balcony Balcony

11' - 5" 37' - 0" 26' - 0" 26' - 0" 11' - 5"

111' - 10"

8
9
' -

 4
 1

/8
"

26' - 0" 11' - 0" 37' - 5" 26' - 0" 37' - 0" 37' - 5"

5
' -

 1
 1

/8
"2
' -

 0
"

4
3
' -

 6
"

6
' -

 1
0
 1

/8
"

3
1
' -

 1
1
"

A123

1

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
3
:2

5
 P

M

A112

Top Floor  Plan

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

4th Floor Presentation



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 10/13/2017

12" = 1'-0"

1
0

/1
6
/2

0
1

7
 9

:5
2

:5
1

 A
M

A113

Club House Rendering

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

12" = 1'-0"
3

Club House Rendeirng 2_3

12" = 1'-0"
1

3D View 18_1

No. Description Date
No. Description Date



Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

T/ Footing
-1' - 0"

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

T/ Footing
-1' - 0"

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 10/13/2017

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0

/1
6
/2

0
1

7
 9

:5
3

:1
4

 A
M

A114

Club House Elevations

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

Street Elevation Club House

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

Left Side Elevation Club House

No. Description Date
No. Description Date



Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

T/ Footing
-1' - 0"

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

T/ Footing
-1' - 0"

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

T/ Footing
-1' - 0"

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

T/ Footing
-1' - 0"

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 10/13/2017

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0

/1
6
/2

0
1

7
 9

:5
3

:3
3

 A
M

A115

Club House Elevations

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

Right Side Elevation Club House

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

Rear Elevation  Club House

No. Description Date
No. Description Date



UP

2' - 8 1/8"
18' - 6"

26' - 0"

18' - 6"
1' - 1"

Lobby

434

Office

435

Stairway

436

Stairway 2

437

Cabana

438

Cabana

439

Restroom

442

Restroom

441

Room

445

Room

446

Lounge

447

Parking Garage

448

Pool Equipment
Room

449

Corridor

443

Corridor

440

A1141

A114

2

A115

1

A115 2

10"

12' - 4 7/8"
3 5/8"

5' - 2 7/8"

10"

26' - 0"
10"

19' - 5 5/8"
10"

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:0
0
:4

1
 P

M

A116

Club House Lower
Level Plan

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

Parking  Level



DN

Great Room

444

Jan Clos

450
Vest

451

Vest

452

Men's Locker
Room

453

Women's Locker
Room

454Stairway

455

Fitness Center

456

Stairway

457
Computer Center

464

Terrace

Terrace

A1141

Board Room

458

7
9

' 
- 

8
 3

/4
"

6
' -

 0
"

1
1
' -

 1
0
"

4
' -

 0
"

1
1
' -

 1
0
"

4
' -

 0
"

8
' -

 1
0
 1

/2
"

4
' -

 0
"

8
' -

 1
0
 1

/2
"

4
' -

 5
 3

/4
"

1
1
' -

 1
0
"

4
' -

 0
"

10"

17' - 7 1/4"
10"

12' - 6 3/4"

3 5/8"

7' - 5 3/4"

3 5/8"

26' - 0"
10"

4' - 0" 8' - 10 1/2" 4' - 0" 8' - 10 1/2"

2' - 0"

5' - 11 1/4"
33' - 0 3/4"

66' - 9"

66' - 9"

1
0
"

3
4
' -

 9
"

3
 5

/8
"

2
5
' -

 7
 5

/8
"

1
0
"

1
7
' -

 4
 1

/2
"

A114

2

A115

1

A115 2

--

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1/8" = 1'-0"

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:0
0
:4

1
 P

M

A117

2nd floor Club House

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

SAS

Checker

No. Description Date

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

1st Floor



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 10/13/2017

1
0

/1
6
/2

0
1

7
 8

:0
8

:5
7

 A
M

A118

Photometrics

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 10/13/2017

1
0

/1
6
/2

0
1

7
 8

:0
9

:2
3

 A
M

A119

Lighting Cut Sheets

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 10/13/2017

1
0

/1
6
/2

0
1

7
 8

:2
6

:2
7

 A
M

A119A

Light Cut Sheets cont.

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
3
:2

5
 P

M

A120

Images of Amenties

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

Image of Fire Pits

Image of Electric Charging Station

Image of Pergola Image of Bike Storage

Images of Concepts  (i.e examples) only, Final Designs may vary



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
3
:2

6
 P

M

A121

Railing Detail Precast
Detail

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

Proposed Precast Wall Construction w/ Embededd Brick

Standard Brick and Block Construction 



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 10/13/2017

12" = 1'-0"

1
0

/1
6
/2

0
1

7
 9

:5
3

:3
3

 A
M

A122

Rendering

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

12" = 1'-0"
1

3D View 16_2

No. Description Date
No. Description Date



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 10/13/2017

12" = 1'-0"

1
0

/1
6
/2

0
1

7
 9

:5
3

:3
4

 A
M

A122A

Unnamed

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

12" = 1'-0"
1

3D View 23_1

No. Description Date
No. Description Date



Parking  Level
0' - 0"

1st Floor
13' - 0"

2nd Floor
23' - 0"

3rd Floor
33' - 0"

4th Floor
43' - 0"

Bearing (Roof
Lower)
52' - 0"

Roof Bearing (High)
57' - 0"

T/ Footing
-1' - 0"

1 2 3 4 4.8 51.8

Bearing (Roof ends)
46' - 0"

7
2
' -

 2
 3

/8
"

6
4
' -

 1
1
 3

/4
"

0
"

Mean Roof Height

6
2
' -

 3
 1

/4
"

1
3
' -

 8
"

5
5
' -

 5
 1

/4
"

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1/16" = 1'-0"

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
3
:3

5
 P

M

A123

Comparison

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

1/16" = 1'-0"
1

Front Elevation Copy 1

1/16" = 1'-0"
2

Drafting 1



2
008 Reed C

onstruction  D
ata Inc.

A
ll ri

ghts reserve d.

c

2
008 Reed C

onstruction
 D

ata In
c.

A
ll ri

ghts 
reserved.

c

2008 Reed C
o

nstruction Data Inc.

All ri
ghts reserve

d.

c

2008 Reed C
o

nstruction Data Inc.

All ri
ghts reserve

d.

c

UP

A103

1

1

2

3

4

4.8
5

1.8

1

2

3

4

4.8
5

1.8

1

2

3

4

4.8
5

1.8

1

2

3

4

4.8
5

1.8

A1141

A114

2

A115

1

A115 2

www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1" = 40'-0"

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:0
0
:4

2
 P

M

A124

Overall Garage Plan

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

1" = 40'-0"
1

Overall Parking Level



www.archstudioltd.net

Scale

Project number

Date

Drawn by

Checked by

Eriksson Engineering Associates, Ltd.
135 S. Jefferson Street
Suite 135
Chicago, IL 60661
Phone: 312-463-0551
Fax: 312-463-0552
e-mail: sgregory@eea-ltd.com

KDC Consultants, Inc.
16144 S. Bell Road
Lockport, IL 60491
Phone: 708-645-0545
Fax:
e-mail:chaff@aol.com

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Consultant
Address
Address
Phone
Fax
e-mail

Architectural Studio, 
Ltd.
14421 Oakley Ave
Orland Park, IL 60462
Tel: 708-933-4200
Fax: 708-966-0854

Permit 6/12/2016

Professional Design Firm License No. 
184.006770 Exp. Date. 04/30/2019

Revised layout with indoor garages 09/13/2016

Revisions- Review comments 08/30/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 11/18/2016

Revised layout for typical floor plan 10/24/2016

Sidewalks/ hardscape revisions 12/1/2016

Resubmittal 12/06/2016

Revised site plan 1/25/2017

Resubmittal-revised elevations and floor plans and site plan 4/4/2017

Resubmittal revise elevations, floor plans and site plan 4/20/2017

Revised based on meeting 5/18/2017

Revised site plan based on Village meeting comments 6/8/2017

Flipped dog park 7/3/2017

Redesign for 4 Bldg design 8/29/2017

Site Plan Revisions 9/8/2017

Revisions for resubmittal 9/26/2017

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

7
 3

:1
3
:3

9
 P

M

A125

Prelim Grading

2016-005

Residence of Brookside Glen

KJM Development/

9-26-2017

Author

Checker

No. Description Date

T/ Garage Floor Elevation
El= 700.5

T/ Garage Floor Elevation
El= 701.0

T/ Garage Floor Elevation
El= 701.0

T/ Garage Floor Elevation
El= 702.0

T/ Garage Floor Elevation
El= 700.5

T/ Pool deck 702.0

T/ Curb
El= 699.47

T/ grade
El= 699.1

CB Rim
EL=698.54

CB Rim
EL=699.15















More U.S. households are renting than at any point in 50 years I Pew Research Center Page 1 of 4 

:-!UMBERS. FACTS A?\D TRE'\DS SHAPI�G YOl,R �ORLD ABOL:T FOLLOW DO'iATE 

� Pew Research Center 
MENU RESEARCH AREAS Search 

JULY 19. 2017 

More U.S. households are renting than 
at any point in 50 years 
BY ANTHONY CILLUFFO (HTTP://WWW.PEWRESEARCH.ORG/At:THOR/ACILLUFFO/), ABIGAIL GEIGER 

(HTTP://WWW.PEWRESEARCH.ORG/AUTHOR/AGEIGER/) AND RICHARD FRY 

(HTTP://WWW.PEWRESEARCH.ORG/STAFF/RICHARD-FRY/) 

A decade after the housing bust upended the lives of millions of Americans, more U.S. households are 

headed by renters than at any point since at least 1965, according to a Pew Research Center analysis of 

Census Bureau housing data (https://www.census.gov/topics/housing.html) 

The total number of households in the United States grew by 7.6 million between 2006 and 2016. But over 

the same period, the number of households headed by owners remained relatively flat, in part because of 

the lingering effects of the housing crisis (http://www.pewsocialtrends.org/2016/12/15/in-a-recovering-market

homeownershi p-rates-are-down-sharply-for-blacks-young-adults/) 

Meanwhile, the number of households renting their home increased significantly during that span, as did 

the share, which rose from 31.2% of households in 2006 to 36.6% in 2016. The current renting level 

exceeds the recent high of 36.2% set in 1986 and 1988 and approaches the rate of 37.0% in 1965. 

Certain demographic groups 

(http://www.jchs.harvard.edu/sites/jchs.harvard.edu/files/harvard_jchs_state_of_the_nations_housing_2017-chap5.pdf) 

- such as young adults, nonwhites and the lesser educated - have historically been more likely to rent than 

others, and rental rates have increased among these groups over the past decade. However, rental rates 

have also increased among some groups that have traditionally been less likely to rent, including whites 

and middle-aged adults. 

(http:/ /www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2017/o7/19/more-u-s-households-are-renting-than-at-any-point-in-50-

years/ft_17-o7-19_rentersabouttwothirds_2/) Young adults - those younger than 35 - continue to be the most 

likely of all age groups to rent. In 2016, 65% of households headed by people younger than 35 were renting, 

up from 57% in 2006. Rental rates have also risen notably among those ages 35 to 44. In 2016, about four

in-ten (41%) households headed by someone in this age range were renting, up from 31% in 2006. 

Rental rates also went up among households headed by someone ages 45 to 64, rising from 22% of 

households in 2006 to 28% in 2016. But among the oldest Americans - those 65 or older - the rental rate 

remained steady at around 20%. 

http:/ /www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2017 /07 /19/more-u-s-households-are-renting-than-... I 0/24/2017 



More U.S. households are renting than at any point in 50 years\ Pew Research Center Page 2 of 4 

(http:/ j,,rww. pewresearch.org/fact-

tank/2017 / 07 /19/more-u-s-households-are-renting

than-at-any-point-in-50-years/ft_17-07-

19_rentersshareof_3/) Black and Hispanic 

households continue to be about twice as likely as 

white households to rent their homes. In 2016, 

58% of black household heads and 54% of 

Hispanic household heads were renting their 

homes, compared with 28% of whites. But all 

major racial and ethnic groups were more likely 

to rent in 2016 than a decade earlier. 

The movement toward renting has also occurred 

across all levels of educational attainment. From 

2006 to 2016, rental rates increased among 

households headed by someone with less than a 

high school degree, as well as among those 

headed by a college graduate. 

(http://vvv-.'W.pewresearch.org/fact-

tank/ 2017 / 07 /19/more-u-s-households-are-ren ting

than-at-any-point-in-50-years/ft_17-07-

19_rentershouseholds_2/) Even so, college 

graduates are the least likely group to be 

renters. In 2016, 29% of college-educated 

household heads were renters, compared with 

38% of household heads with a high school 

degree only or some college experience and 52% 

of household heads who did not finish high 

school. 

The increase in U.S. renters over the past decade 

does not necessarily mean that homeownership is 

undesirable to today's renters. Indeed, in a 2016 

Pew Research Center survey 

(http:/ /'vl'Ww.pewsocialtrends.org/2016/12/15/in-a

recovering-market-homeownership-rates-are-down -

sharply-for-blacks-young-adults/ #most-renters

would-like-to-buy-a-home-in-the-future-bu t-many

cite-finances-among-major-reasons-for-currently

renting) , 72% of renters said they would like to 

buy a house at some point. About two-thirds of 

renters in the same survey (65%) said they 

currently rent as a result of circumstances, 

Significant growth in the number and 
share of households renting their home 

since 2006 

• ·wnbe of household heads, 1 mllions 

BO million 

70 

60 

50 

40
36.2 

30 

10 

0 
1965 

Homeowners 

1975 1985 1995 

76.1 75.0 

43.3 

2006 2016 

% -,.ru.i:ehold .?ads u. f:o rent their home 

40% 

37.0 

35 

30 

25 

0 

1965 1975 1985 1995 

36.6 

31.2 

2006 2016 

'wr�. C::,9r,!l l.:1boels ,inc for 1%5 2DD6 and 2D16. Figure� fur 19-:'"9. 
19.E.:.. 1Se9 19St::; :1n,::J 2::,:1::J-:1:il6 1efl.e-ctre,f1s-ede:st1rn9tes. 

SJ,..;i::e =1:::\•. Ptse.ar::.r, ·:,tnt.ersnat�sr-s0fC: S ::ensusBur��u 

est1rr1.f,t"t:::� A ...,J1.:� ... n1 :n,1-e111or, 

PEW RESEARCH CENTER 

About two-thirds of households headed 

by young adults are rentals 

% of household heads who rent their home, by 
householde · age 

• ?flnn • ?O·l R 

http://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2017 /07 /19/more-u-s-households-are-renting-than-... 10/24/2017 



More U.S. households are renting than at any point in 50 years I Pew Research Center Page 3 of 4 

compared with 32% who said they rent as a 

matter of choice. When asked about the specific 

reasons why they rent, a majority of renters, 

especially nonwhites, cited financial reasons. 

Younger then 35 

35-44 

45.£4 

65+ 

�,1,:He B.as.e n on re·, 1se ::1,estr rn,ffC:5 

19 

2 

28 

57 

65 

S:Jurce P-e�\' Rese.ar.::h '=:enter Bna�sis :if':'.ensus 6ur-esu estimates 
:Jf h:: ,;s1 ng In ·,1:c11tfl r:, 

PEW RESEARCH CENTER 

Share of renting households increased 
for whites blacks and Hispanics since 

2006 

% of household heads lL ho ent th.e · home, by 
hOUSeho 'de s are ethrriaty 

•2006 •2016 

Whites 

Blacks 
58 

Hispanics 

r,K,tf. 'Nh 1tes Incl u,de :J n t, s1 ngle-ra-:::e no n-H 5pan 1cs. 6 locks Incl u-:je 
b-:Jth r.he ,..tisp,9n1::: 9n,n non-et1span1� ::;:imp,Jn-er/lS :Jfthe s1ngl-e-roce 
tJ.liK k P•8 p u l,!ltm n H 1s11s m::s 9 re Jf 9 r·�, rn,:oe. �n nu.a I rates :,9 lcu lated 
IJ.a�.ed an !:in ,he r.9.g;, af � ua rcert, r 9tes 
&lurc:e F-e,,, Resesr:::n :=:ente1 an.9t_.s5 :if ::::ensus Bureau estimates 
of homeo1,,nersh1p rat£s 

PEW RESEARCH CENTER 

Households of all education levels are 

now more likely to rent their home 

% of household heads lL'ho renc thei home, by 
householders educational attainment 

•2006 •2016 

AC 

http://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/2017 /07 /l 9/rnore-u-s-households-are-renting-than-... 10/24/2017 



More U.S. households are renting than at any point in 50 years I Pew Research Center Page 4 of 4 

Less than hi� school 
52 

High school 
38 

Some college 
32 

38 

Bachelor's degree+ 
29 

\,J�:.: 1-1,£:r s:f ::.::::! refe,st:jth8se ,-.r.; n:i-ye :1tt.BlPt.J::1 r,1.;:r· :<�,:.�:1 
J1r.:<:n-,3 ::r :f5 t-:Jui·�5it::Pt ::,u,;:n :,s 3 :�er··erBJ E�uc:Jt1Jl' 
C\-::, t 1 ,:: r� r·1 ,; 1 ·t: SEC ·:er tifi :::tI-2. 3:: n1 t ::::: I iege , efe rs-:.:: rJ, ::::: .. t . 1:!· 

51' 'E:-J: ;�-e :iegr t" .w:1 '.I· :J,,f: . h ::i ,tt::1' :Jt�; : : ·  II": ge r ,Jt J :J · .-.-
� ;1< ,·i "3 Je �f '; t 835-f: rJ .: 1 !�,. Jf· ::n::·:St 1):::T. 1h ing n gr :::I.J\� .} i.; 5 r .. t ''::, 
s�-jr.::: ?e,.-.Rese-:=ir�! ·.:.e,,1e(:H��:d_,StsJf i:(16.:,r··:t :=-·:=!J..C: .. ::J 1=::::1··� 

PEW RESEARCH CENTER 

Anthony Cilluffo (http://www.pewresearch.org/author/acilluffo/) is a research assistant 

focusing on social and demographic trends at Pew Research Center. 

POSTS I EMAIL 

Abigail Geiger (http://www.pewresearch.org/author/ageiger/) is an associate digital producer 

and writer for Pew Research Center. 

POSTS I EMAIL I @ABIGAILGEIGER 

Richard Fry (http://ww,v.pewresearch.org/author/rfry/) is a senior researcher focusing on 

economics and education at Pew Research Center. 

POSTS I EMAIL I BIO I @R_FRY1 

http://www.pewresearch.org/fact-tank/201 7 /07 / 19 /more-u-s-househo Ids-are-renting-than-... I 0/24/20 I 7 



After big lull, suburban apartment construction has boomed since 2013 

Sections 

BUSiNESS LEDGER 
Subscribe 

News updated: 10/23/2017 9:37 AM 

Search 

Page 1 of 3 

After big lull, suburban apartment 
construction has boomed since 2013 

This Daily Herald drone photo shows the first apartment development in Reg, 
Lincolnshire. The development is near the site of the Regal Cinemas. the , 

Jeff Knox I Staff Photographer sho\i 

Jeff} 

Chacour Koop 

At age 56, Michelle Love has never rented an apartment or condominium. 

That likely will change soon when she and her husband, Ron Mousseau, sell the four-bedroom, 2,400-square-foot 

Arlington Heights house where they raised their children. 

http://www.dhbusinessledger.com/news/20171021 / after-big-lull-suburban-apartment-construction-h... 10/24/20 I 7 



After big lull, suburban apartment construction has boomed since 2013 Page 2 of 3 

The couple wants to trade a mortgage, yard work, shovel ing snow and empty rooms for a downtown apartment that 

offers flexibi l ity, proxim ity to the Metra station and shops. 

"It's just the two of us now, so we decided, 'Why not? Let's try it,"' Love said. 

They' re far from a lone. Across the suburbs, thousands of new apartments have been sprouting up  each of the past five 

years to quench a demand for rental housing not seen since the 1990s. 

Among the reasons: Young professionals are delaying buying a home, whi le more empty nesters want to downsize and 

get out from under the ever-increasing property tax burden. 

Zero to 9,200 

Just about every metric shows the rental housing market is growing and remains strong. From 2004 to 2012, developers 

bu i lt rough ly 1,600 apartment un its in Cook and the other col lar  counties, accord ing to Appraisal Research Counselors, 

a Chicago-based rea l estate consu ltant fi rm. Notably, the rea l  estate research g roup reported "zero" new apartments in  

2012. 

That changed d ramatica l ly the next year. S ince 2013, more than 9,200 apartments have hit the suburban market, and 

more than 2,400 are under construction . Many of these are in  places that have never had apartment bu i ld ings. 

The $110 mi l l ion Wheel ing Town Center and its 300-un it apartment bui lding and 10-screen movie theater wi l l  anchor 

the vi l lage's first downtown district, whi le construction is expected to beg in  next year on hundreds more apartment 

un its near the Metra station off Dundee Road. 

John Melaniphy, economic development d i rector for Wheel ing, said mun icipal governments trad itional ly wary of 

approving mu lt iunit housing have started to embrace it. 

"You create a l l  this residentia l density around your  downtown, which has successfu l ly enhanced reta i l  sa les and 

occupancy rates," he said. 

Fewer burdens 

Frank and Mari lyn Woidat, ages 85 and 78, raised four  chi ldren in a 2,200-square-foot, co lonia l -style house in  St. 

Charles. Though they remain in good health and contemplated buying a smal ler ranch-style home, the couple 

eventual ly settled on a corner apartment i n  E lmhurst 255, just up the street from the city's downtown. 

The conveniences -- main ly maintenance-free l iving -- plus having neighbors, d rew them to apartment l iving. 

"I think one of the benefits of moving into an apa rtment l i ke this is just to e l iminate a l l  the burdens of owning a home, " 

Frank Woidat said. "They aren't burdens when you' re 40 years old, but they are when you' re older." 

They' re part of a trend. 

For example, in  2015 more than 44 percent of Cook County households were occupied by renters, the highest rate since 

1990, according to the Institute for Housing Stud ies at DePau l  University (https://www.housingstudies.org/research

publ ications/state-of-housing/2017-state- renta l-housing-cook-county/) . Executive Director Geoff Smith said the 

increase in  rental demand may be even higher in  the suburbs, but the housing institute doesn't track those numbers. 

"The city has always had a much hig her share of renters, so in some ways the net demand for renting hasn't increased 

as much as it m ight have in the suburbs because there's more room to g row in suburbs," he said. 

http://www.dhbusinessledger.com/news/20171021 /after-big-lull-suburban-apartment-construction-h... 10/24/2017 



After big lull, suburban apartment construction has boomed since 2013 

'Those people' 

Page 3 of 3 

Despite the demonstrable interest and need for multifam i ly housing, there often is opposition when apartment p rojects 

go before municipal officials for approva l .  It's not unusual for residents to pack meetings to voice concerns about 

overcrowd ing, traffic and the size of some developments. 

Just last week, Arl ington Heights trustees overwhelmingly shot down a developer's proposa l to bui ld an 88-unit 

apartment bui ld ing on vacant land near downtown after residents raised those arguments. 

An impl ication, too, when some proposa ls are reviewed is that apartments may attract lower- income people and those 

more prone to crimina l  behavior and put a stra in on loca l services. 

"They're rea l ly focusing on the people -- that they don't want 'those people' l iving next to them -- and they don't even 

know who 'those people' a re," said Tracy Cross, a real estate consu ltant and researcher in Schaumburg. 

According to the DePaul housing g roup, renters age 55  and older now account for more than 27 percent of the rental 

popu lation, a rising trend expected to continue as the nation ages. The same data show renters earning $75,000 a year 

or more make up  a growing share of the renta l market, accounting for 21 percent. 

Too much? 

With rent costs increasing and occupancy rates in the suburbs at 95 percent, it doesn't appear the demand for 

apartments is going away soon. 

However, g iven that I l l inois is losing popu lation and lagging in  economic growth, are developers bui ld ing too much too 

fast? 

Experts give varied responses. 

"Are we bui ld ing too many luxury apartments? The answer is, ' Probably,"' said Steve Hovany, a former planning d i rector 

for Napervi l le and Schaumbu rg, and a rea l  estate ana lyst. "But occupancy is fu l l ,  and rent keeps going up." 

Other experts see it differently. After nearly a decade of virtua l ly no new apartments, the reg ion is catch ing up.  A couple 

thousand new units per year i n  the entire subu rban market won't cause saturation, one said. 

DePau l ' s  Smith ca l led predictions a "terrible idea," but said Ch icagoans, experiencing a simi lar bui lding boom, are 

asking the same question: Wi l l  there be enough households to keep pace with development? 

"That's one question," he said, "both in the long- and short-term, that (the answer) will be interesting to see." 

http://www.dhbusinessledger.com/news/20171 021/after-big-lull-suburban-apartment-construction-h... 10/24/2017 



• 



Suburbs Have Become a Haven for Renters I US News 

II (https://www.usnews.com) 

ll.��tW!t'i .. -1 
(https://www.usnews.com) 

NEWS /J/WWW.USNEWS.COM/NEWS) 

(//www.usnews.com/news) 
News» 

Renters Are Rocking the Suburbs 

Page 1 of27 

As more and more Americans have migrated from cities, rental housing on their outskirts has become increasingly popular. 

By Andrew Soergel /https://www.usnews.com/topjcs/author/andrew-soergell, Economy Reporter I March B, 201 6, at 6:40 p.m. 

f 

Renting is becoming an increasingly popular housing option in America's suburbs, according to a new study. (Getty Images) 

Renters and apartment-dwellers are often painted as young professionals living in cramped, expensive domiciles, mostly within 
America's biggest, most populous cities. 

But that perception may be taking a hit. A previous study showed that more than half 
(httos://www.usnews.com/news/articles/201 5/1 2/09/old-people-not-mlllenn!aJs-are-taking-al l-the-apartments) of the country's 
rental population is at least 40 years old, and now a new report 

https:/ /www.usnews.com/news/articles/2016-03-08/suburbs-have-become-a-haven-for-re... 10/24/2017 



Suburbs Have Become a Haven for Renters I US News Page 2 of27 

(http://furmancenter.org/files/NYU Furman Center Capital One National Affordable Rental Housing Landscape 2016.pd0 
from Capital One and New York University's Furman Center for Real Estate and Urban Policy suggests more and more renters 
are actually settling in the suburbs and living well outside major city l imits. 

"Indeed, the renter population in the suburban areas outside principal cities grew by more than a third - by more than 1 2  mi l l ion 
people - between 2006 and 201 4," the study said, noting that the number of renters within city l imits grew by only 9 mi l l ion over 
the same period. 

The study looked specifically at the 1 1  largest metropolitan regions across the country, which it referred to as "principal 
cities" and included the Boston, Los Angeles, New York City and District of Columbia areas. Ultimately, researchers found that 
the percentage of renters in  both cities and suburbs grew between 2006 and 201 4  in all of the major metro regions. 

RELATED CONTENT 

(https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/201 6-03-08/where-bil l ionaires-line-up-on-

donald-trump) 
(https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/2016-03-08/where-bil l ionai res-l ine-up-on-donald-trump}Where 
Billionaires Line Up on Donald Trump (https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/201 6-03-08/where-bil l ionaires
line-up-on-donald-trump) 

[RELATED: Where Bi l l ionaires Line Up on Donald Trump (https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/201 6-03-08/where
billionaires-line-up-on-donald-trump)) 

Renting has long been popular with city dwellers, and the study confirmed that a greater percentage of people living in major 
cities rented their homes compared with those who live in the suburbs. About two-thirds of those living within Miami's and New 
York City's l imits were renters in 201 4, and the majority of city dwellers in nine of the 1 1  regions profiled paid rent to live where 
they did. 

But even though renting isn't nearly as popular in suburbia, the percentage of the suburban population that does so 
has bal looned at a faster pace over the last few years. Back in  2006, the suburbs of San Francisco and Los Angeles were the 
only regions in which at least 30 percent of the suburban population rented their homes. By 201 4, the suburbs of Philadelphia, 
Houston and Chicago were the only regions whose rental population still sat beneath that threshold. 

" In 2006, 23 percent of the population living in metro area suburbs nationwide lived in rental units. By 201 4, that share had 
increased to 29 percent," the report said. 

The suburbs have typically been viewed as a cheaper alternative to city l iving. Indeed, in nine of the 1 1  metro areas profiled in 
Tuesday's report, rental costs within city l imits climbed faster between 2006 and 201 4 than they did in the suburbs. And a 
separate Zillow study (http://www.zillow.com/research/urban-suburban-rural-values-rents-1 1 714/) released last month showed 
average rent per square foot in the suburbs was about 1 5  percent cheaper than in urban areas. Average home values were also 
slightly cheaper in suburbia, according to the report. 

https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/2016-03-08/suburbs-have-become-a-haven-for-re... 10/24/2017 



Suburbs Have Become a Haven for Renters I US News Page 3 of27 

These cheaper living options are at least part of the reason mil lions of Americans have flocked to the suburbs in recent years. 
The Census Bureau (http://www.census.gov/hhes/migration/data/cps/cps201 4.html) estimates that about 1 1 .3 mi l lion 
Americans migrated to American suburbs in 201 2  and 201 3, up from the 1 0.6 mill ion individuals in 2006 and 2007. 

RELATED CONTENT 

{https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/2015/1 2/09/old-people:not-mlllennials· 

a re-taking-all-the-apartments) 
(https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/201 5/1 2/09/old-people-not-mil lennials-are-taking-a ll-the-apartments) 

Old People Are Taking All the Apartments (https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/201 5/1 2/09/old-people-not

mil lennials-are-taking-all-the-apartments) 

[RELATED: Old People Are Taking All the Apartments (hnps://www.usnews.com/news/articles/201 5/1 2/09/old-people-not
millennials-are-taking-all-the-apartments}) 

That's compared with only about 6.7 mi l l ion people who moved to major cities in 201 2  and 201 3. Cities reportedly lost more 
than 1 0.6 mil l ion people over that period, while only 6 .5 mil l ion people left the suburbs. 

Yet the new study also highlights a potential problem: There wasn't a single major city or suburb profiled in the report where 
housing availabil ity was able to keep up with increasing demand between 2006 and 2014. 

And with limited availabil ity and more people looking to move, rental and housing prices are bound to go up. 

"This study shows that affordable housing is becoming increasingly out of reach for many low- and even moderate-income 
renters in the nation's largest metro areas - both in the central cities and their surrounding suburbs," Ingrid Gould Ellen, faculty 
director of the NYU Furman Center, said in a statement (http://press.capitalone.com/phoenix.zhtml?c=251626&p=irol
newsArticle&1D=21 46894) accompanying the report. "As supply did not keep pace with this growth in demand, vacancy rates 
decreased, the average number of people living in a rental unit increased, and, in most areas, rents rose." 

Indeed, rental vacancy rates have plummeted across the country in recent years, hitting their lowest level since 1 989 in the 
second quarter of 201 5, according to the Census Bureau (https://www.census.gov/housing/hvs/data/histtabs.html). 
They've rebounded only sl ightly since then, and still sit near historical lows. 

https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/2016-03-08/suburbs-have-become-a-haven-for-re... I 0/24/2017 



Suburbs Have Become a Haven for Renters I US News Page 4 of 27 

RELATED CONTENT 

• • (https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/2015/04/17/ma jor-metros-set-job-

growth-pace-post-recession) 

(https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/201 5/04/1 7 /major-metros-set-job-growth-pace-post-recession)Bad 

Commute? Blame the Job Market (https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/201 5/04/1 7 /major-metros-set-job

growth-pace-post-recession) 

[RELATED: Bad Commute? Blame the Job Market (https://www.usnews.com/news/artjcles/20J 5/04/1 7 /major-metros-set

job-growth-pace-post-recession)l 

As a result, rental prices have been able to climb to their highest levels in h istory. The median asking rent across the U.S. in the 
fourth quarter of 201 5 sat at an al l-time high of $850 per month. For a family of three l iving at the poverty level 
(https://www.healthcare.gov/glossary/federal-poverty-level-FPL/), that equates to more than half of the household's annual 
income. 

"In al l but two of the 1 1  largest metros, the median renter household in 201 4  could have afforded less than 40 percent of 
recently available units," the study said. 

Such expensive rent payments restrict consumer spending and prevent renters from saving up enough money to make a down 
payment on a home. The national homeownership rate in the second quarter of 201 5 hit an al l-time low of 63.5 percent and has 
only ticked up slightly since. Analysts generally believe that higher rent prices are prohibiting would-be homebuyers from 
entering the homeownership market, instead leaving them stuck in a rent payment cycle that could seem impossible to break. 

Fixing this dynamic is hardly an easy task. Rent prices are generally expected to decrease when new housing options become 
available, so more apartment construction is one possible solution. But in already saturated cities and suburbs, where enough 
space for a new apartment building could be at a premium, renters aren't finding very much relief. 

"Mill ions of people nationwide are struggling with the gap in affordable housing, leaving many rent-burdened as the population 
of renters continues to increase," Laura Bailey, a managing vice president with Capital One, said in a statement. "We know that 
our investment in affordable rental housing needs to go beyond just financing construction." 

https://www.usnews.com/news/articles/2016-03-08/suburbs-have-become-a-haven-for-re... 10/24/2017 



The Perks of Renting in the Suburbs 

Home > Tips & Advice 

KNOW-HOW 

The Perks of Rent ing i n  the 
Rent i n  t h e  city,  b u y  i n  t h e  st)biefr�gt s o  a ny m o re .  T h e  pe rks of 

s u b u r b a n  r e n t i n q  a b o u n d .  
B Y  SARAH P IKE (HTTl"S://WWW.ZI LLOW.COM/BLOG/AUTH OR/SARAHPI KE/) O N  7 M A R  2017 

\ 4 1 1- : I _  ·-- - ·- - _ _ _  : 1 1 _ ._ ,_ : _ 1  '- - ·- - - - · · · ·- - ·- - I :  . .  _ :._ . . .. 1- - -- - ·· - - - .1... 1  _ _ __ - • -1 - ·- __ _ __ _ __ _  ,._ :  _ __ _  .1. 1  _ _  --, : 1 1 _  . • •  ,- ,  _ _ _ _ _ _ 

V V l l l l t'  I I I Ul t: l l l l l l t:: 1 1 / l l d l  I IUl l lt::UVV l l t' f :::,  l l V t::  I l l U I Udl l dl t:d.:> L l l d l l U I U t' I  �t::l lt::l d LIUI I:::,,  L I it: L I I I U VV \.:J r uuµ 

Report on Consumer Housing Trends (https://www.zi l low.com/research/zi l low-group-report-2016-
1 3279/) notes that nearly half of mi l lenn ia l  homeowners (49liercent) are movi ng to su burbia - and 

Page 1 of 4 

renters are fol lowing. ( https ://p i nt e rest.c om/pi n/c reate/b u t  
u r l = https% 

While city l ife may seem l ike i t  has  everything and  more, t@A.%Jrbs offer p lenty of  those perks, too. 
in 2 F %  

More bang for your.-hu'-k .# ( h_tt�l§w�Jmw.e:ditrm'Mo m/s h a re A rt i c l e? 
a-' en tt �s :/rttinffl�}4 l«.t:Jbpl31'/o 

Don't be fooled if monthly rent pricJ'sl1J:t
-

. . . . - ��f'�Sbaras� 
. . u rl =  n tsa ct= e+ P.r s + o  + R e nt i n g + i n · city-or-subu rbs-197435/) seem ta1rlyt,8.�,A: A� J!.rw�� s,&.r1=8�cl6Jo ool:. 

That sweet l ittle abode in suburbia i;?1fR�fo��frb!�Wrr�oney. Z i l low data shows 
<https://www.zi 1 1ow.com/research/��,11t1�11m1��,WRWi'e�� rent 
per square foot in more urban areas2��1r6:l�,-

s ���g��04. 

rentriegb;egteh§-3 A % e n  t i n g -
Wi de open spaces i n - i n - i n - s u b rJ FB&;A 

t h e -t h e -t h e-21 2�.e:� l l ows ta t i c. c o m %  
I n  the suburbs, you' l l  get more spac�(jl:J����S"�M'J�ht i n g + i n + t h e + S  
spacious kitchen, grand entryway, o2��1iiJ��!Qi�%207-

2 F )  2 F) 2 F )  3 F +��1B g�er1'pl:lhm1-�"'§n�� 
You ' l l  also have more access to natu re escapes and' community parks. tJh , and you can f inal ly have 

https ://www.zillow.com/blog/perks-renting-in-the-suburbs-2123 34/ 10/24/2017 



The Perks of Renting in the Suburbs 

your own parking spot (or two). 

Privacy, p lease 

More space equals more privacy. The suburbs tend t o  have more s ingle-family homes t o  rent, which 
means you won't have to share a wall (or cei l ing) with neighbors. 

You can a lso enjoy a backyard of your own - and not having to share a community barbecue or 
p icnic table. 

Com m u n ity vi bes 

Living in a suburban neighborhood means more opportunities for block parties - a n d  real ly, more 
opportun ities to get to know the people in your community. 

The art and culture options are im proving, too. Today's suburbs do not equal strip mal ls - think local 
shops, art galleries, community gardens (https://www.zi l low.com/blog/d ig-into-community
gardening-1 95807 /), yoga studios, and performing arts centers. 

Safer spaces 

Crime rates are sti l l  lower in suburban communities than their  surrounding cities. I n  fact. a 2014 FBI  
report (https ://ucr.fbi.gov/crime-in-the-u.s/2014/crime-in-the-u.s.-2014/tables/table-6) shows that 
within all metropolitan areas in the United States, major cities had twice the property crime rate and 
2.5 times the violent cr ime rate compared to surrounding suburban areas. 

Better schools 

You may hear suburban school d istricts boast about their high-performing schools, and it's for good 
reason. Suburban districts generally have higher graduation rates 
(http:/ /hech in g erreport.org/ st rug g Ii ng-citi es-and-excel I i  n g-s u burbs-a-repeated-pattern-arou nd-the
cou ntry /) than urban ones. 

And even if you don't have or plan on having kiddos, having qual ity schools in your neighborhood 
benefits your whole community. 

H a ppier  l i fe 

Yes, seriously. This pol l  reveals that Americans who l ive i n  suburban areas are more satisfied with 
where they l ive than those outside of the suburbs, according to a Citylab pol l  
(http://www.citylab.com/politics/2014/08/overa1 1-americans-in-the-suburbs-are-sti l l-the
happiest/378964/). I n  fact, 84 percent of surveyed suburbanites rated the commun ities they l ive in 
as overall excel lent or good. 

So, if you decide you're ready to escape the city rental game, know you 're not a lone. And if renting 
isn't a l ong-term solution for you, the money you'l l  save by moving to the su burbs can be stashed 
away toward a down payment (https://www.zi l low. com/mortgage-learning/down-payments/). 

St i l l  debating on whether renting in the city or the suburbs is best for you? Let us help you find the 
scene that suits you best (https://www.zillow.com/blog/rent-in-city-or-suburbs-197 435/). 

Related: 

City Living Costs Fam i l ies Up to $9,000 More a Year Than Suburban 
(https://www.zi l low.com/blog/cost-of- l iving-report-213208/) 

https://www.zillow.com/blog/perks-renting-in-the-suburbs-2 12334/ 

Page 2 of 4 

1 0/24/20 1 7  



The Perks of Renting in the Suburbs 

• Two Ways to Compare Renting vs. Owning a Home (https://www.zillow.com/blog/compare

renting-vs-owning-home-201408/) 

"You're Throwing Money Away" and Other  Myths About Renting 

(https://www. z i llow .com/blog/3-myths-renting-20196 3/) 

About the author 

Sarah Pike 

(https ://www.z i l low.com/b log/author /sarahpike/) 

Sarah Pike is a freelancer, writing teacher, and new homeowner. When 

she's not writ ing, teaching,  or  obsessively organizing her home, she's 

probably binge-watching RomComs or reading home decor m agazines. 

She also enjoys fol lowing far too many celebrities than she should on 

lnstagram. You can find Sarah on Twitter at @sarahzpike 

(https://twitter.com/sarahzpike). 

Leave a Reply 

Start the discussion 

MOST SHARED STORIES 

10 Ways to Make a Small Bathroom Look Bigger 
(https://www.zil low.com/blog/make-smal l-bathroom
look-bigger-220703/) 

0 679 $ 0  O aG 

Pending Sale: Sting and Trudie Styler's $56M NYC 

Penthouse (https://www.zillow.com/blog/sting-56m

penthouse-off-market-22l966/) 

MOST RECENT STORIES 

The Ideal Home for You, Based on Your Zodiac Sign 

(https://www.zillow.com/blog/home-based-on

zodiac-sign-221513/) 

O a2 $ 0  0 22 

https://www.zillow.com/blog/perks-renting-in-the-suburbs-212334/ 

Page 3 of 4 

10/24/2017 



The Perks of Renting in the Suburbs 

The Ideal Home for You, Based on Your Zodiac Sign 
(https;/ /www.zillow.com/blog/home-based-on· 
zodiac-sign-221513/) 
23 Oct 2017 

10 Ways to Make a Small Bathroom Look Bigger 
(https://www.zil low.com/blog/make-small-bathroom
look-bigger-220703/) 
18 Oct 2017 

Is Your Bathroom a Total Snooze Fest? (It Doesn't 
Have to Be) (https:/ /www.zillow.com/blog/design
bathroom-wlth-personality-221764/) 
16 Oct 2017 

TAGS 

Renting (https://www.zillow.com/blog/tag/renting/) 

Pending Sale: Sting and Trudie Styler's $56M NYC 
Penthouse (https:/ /www.zillow.com/blog/sting-56m
penthouse-off-market-221966/) 
19 Oct 2017 

How Historic Racial Injustices Still Impact Housing 
Today (https:/ /www.zillow.com/blog/historic-racial
injustices-housing-221898/) 
16 Oct 2017 

Page 4 of 4 

ABOUT (//WWW.ZILLOW.COM/CORP/ ABOUT.HTM) ZESTIMATES (//WWW.ZILLOW.COM/ZESTIMATE/) 

RESEARCH (/ /WWW.ZILLOW.COM/RESEARCH/) JOBS (//WWW.ZILLOW.COM/JOBS/) 

HELP (//ZILLOW.ZENDESK.COM/HC/EN•US) ADVERTISE (//WWW.ZILLOW.COM/ ADVERTISE/) 

TERMS OF USE & PRIVACY (//WWW.ZILLOW.COM/CORP/TERMS.HTM) 

AD CHOICE (//WWW.ZILLOW.COM/CORP/PRIVACY.HTM#BEHAVIORALADVERTISING) 

MOBILE APPS (//WWW.ZILLOW.COM/MOBILE/) 

o o tt a o  
© 2006-2017 Zlllow Group or Its companies Follow Us (httpet,1..,.U .. S f k fl 811'. Q U UPP .'�Jlmi 

https :/ /www.zillow.com/blog/perks-renting-in-the-suburbs-2123 34/ 10/24/2017 


	1 11-02-2017 Plan Commission Agenda
	2 PC Minutes 20171019 - draft final
	3 Studio Q - Staff Report 20171102 final
	4 Studio Q - Back Up
	Studio Q - Special Use Application_Redacted
	Studio Q - Q&A

	5 Residences at Brookside Glen - Staff Report 20171102 final
	6 RBSG Back Up & Plans small
	10 RBSG - Back Up
	RBSG - Applications and Narrative 20171003 amended_Redacted
	RBSG - Plan Set 20171005 small
	Sheets
	A100 - Coversheet
	A101 - Schemtic Site Plan
	A102 - Land Banked Parking Plan
	A103 - Schematic Site Plan Distance Study
	A104 - Ground Sigange
	A105 - Refuse Enclosure Details
	A106 - Turn Radius
	A107 - Building Elevation
	A108 - Building Elevations
	A109 - Buiding Elevaiton
	A110 - Typical Garage Level
	A111 - Typical Residential Floor
	A112 - Top Floor  Plan
	A120 - Images of Amenties
	A121 - Railing Detail Precast Detail
	A123 - Comparison
	A125 - Prelim Grading

	Part 1.pdf
	Sheets
	A116 - Club House Lower Level Plan
	A117 - 2nd floor Club House
	A124 - Overall Garage Plan




	11 RBSG - Clean Renderings and Elevations
	3d View 16-2
	Main entry rendering
	Project bASE BUILDING -street view
	Project bASE BUILDINGCOMBINED
	Project bASE BUILDING-only building - Elevation - Front Elevation Copy 1

	12 RBSG - Landscape Plan
	13 RBSG - Site Plan REVISED 20171013 parking by clubhouse plus setback labels
	Sheets
	A101 A - Site Plan


	Club House.pdf
	Sheets
	A113 - Club House Rendering
	A114 - Club House Elevations
	A115 - Club House Elevations
	A122 - Rendering
	A122A - Unnamed


	A-119A - Light Cut Sheets cont-.pdf
	Sheets
	A119A - Light Cut Sheets cont.


	A-119 - Lighting Cut Sheets.pdf
	Sheets
	A119 - Lighting Cut Sheets


	A-118 photometric.pdf
	Sheets
	A118 - Photometrics



	7 Multi-Family News Articles



